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          1                             Tuesday Aft ernoon Session, 
 
          2                             July 26th, 2016. 
 
          3                        - - - 
 
          4                     Sarah Murley, 
 
          5    being by me first duly sworn, as her einafter 
 
          6    certified, deposes and says as follo ws: 
 
          7                   CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          8    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          9          Q.  Good afternoon, Ms. Murley . 
 
         10          A.  Good afternoon. 
 
         11          Q.  My name is Mike Soules.  A s you just 
 
         12    heard, I represent Sierra Club in th is proceeding. 
 
         13    How are you doing? 
 
         14          A.  Good.  Thank you. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  Before talking abou t the 
 
         16    specifics of your hearing testimony I wanted to cover 
 
         17    a couple of preliminary points. 
 
         18              First of all, if I refer t o The Ohio 
 
         19    Edison Company and the Cleveland Ele ctric 
 
         20    Illuminating Company, and the Toledo  Edison Company 
 
         21    collectively as "the Companies", wil l you understand 
 
         22    what I mean? 
 
         23          A.  Yes. 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  Great.  And are you  aware that on 
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          1    May 2nd of this year the Companies p roposed 
 
          2    modifications to Rider RRS? 
 
          3          A.  Yes. 
 
          4          Q.  And if I refer to the Comp anies proposed 
 
          5    modification to Rider RRS as the mod ified Rider RRS, 
 
          6    will you understand what I mean? 
 
          7          A.  Yes. 
 
          8          Q.  Great.  And are you aware that the 
 
          9    Commission Staff has proposed a Dist ribution 
 
         10    Modernization Rider? 
 
         11          A.  Yes. 
 
         12          Q.  And if I refer to that rid er as the 
 
         13    Staff's proposal, or the DMR, will y ou understand 
 
         14    what I mean? 
 
         15          A.  Yes. 
 
         16          Q.  Great.  Thank you.  Ms. Mu rley, you 
 
         17    filed three rounds of written testim ony in this case, 
 
         18    correct? 
 
         19          A.  Yes. 
 
         20          Q.  And your rebuttal rehearin g testimony 
 
         21    was filed last Friday, July 22nd, co rrect? 
 
         22          A.  Yes. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Great.  And just fo r your 
 
         24    reference, unless I explicitly state  otherwise, I'm 
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          1    only going to be asking you question s about your 
 
          2    rebuttal rehearing testimony in this  deposition.  So 
 
          3    any time I refer just to "your testi mony", I'm 
 
          4    referring to the rebuttal rehearing testimony.  Does 
 
          5    that make sense? 
 
          6          A.  Yes, I understand. 
 
          7          Q.  Great.  Did you bring any documents with 
 
          8    you to your deposition today? 
 
          9          A.  I have a copy of my testim ony, and I 
 
         10    have a copy of Witness Buckley's tes timony. 
 
         11          Q.  Do you have a copy of Atta chment SM-R-1? 
 
         12          A.  I'm sorry, could you repea t that? 
 
         13          Q.  Do you have a copy of the attachment to 
 
         14    your testimony, the one labeled SM-R -1? 
 
         15          A.  Yes. 
 
         16          Q.  Great.  Thank you.  So for  your 
 
         17    testimony you're testifying on behal f of the 
 
         18    Companies, correct? 
 
         19          A.  Yes. 
 
         20          Q.  But your firm contracted d irectly with 
 
         21    FirstEnergy Corp. for your rehearing  testimony? 
 
         22          A.  I was asked by the Legal D epartment to 
 
         23    prepare my testimony. 
 
         24          Q.  The name of your firm is A pplied 
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          1    Economics LLC, right? 
 
          2          A.  Correct. 
 
          3          Q.  Did Applied Economics sign  a contract 
 
          4    with FirstEnergy Corp. or with anoth er entity? 
 
          5          A.  With FirstEnergy Service C ompany, a 
 
          6    wholly owned subsidiary of FirstEner gy Corp. 
 
          7          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Could y ou please turn 
 
          8    to Page 2 of your rehearing testimon y? 
 
          9          A.  Yes. 
 
         10          Q.  Great.  Thank you.  Starti ng on Line 2 
 
         11    it states that your testimony, quote , addresses 
 
         12    economic and revenue impacts of the FirstEnergy Corp. 
 
         13    headquarters (HQ) on the State of Oh io.  Do you see 
 
         14    that reference in your testimony? 
 
         15          A.  Yes. 
 
         16          Q.  So your testimony presents  an analysis 
 
         17    of both the economic impact and the revenue impact of 
 
         18    FirstEnergy Corp.'s headquarters, co rrect? 
 
         19          A.  Yes, the tax revenues. 
 
         20          Q.  Okay.  And a tax revenue i mpact analysis 
 
         21    is somewhat different than an econom ic impact 
 
         22    analysis; is that right? 
 
         23          A.  Yes. 
 
         24          Q.  But both types of analysis  are different 
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          1    ways of measuring the economic impac t of the business 
 
          2    or some other activity? 
 
          3          A.  They are both ways to meas ure. 
 
          4          Q.  Do you agree with that? 
 
          5          A.  I'm sorry? 
 
          6          Q.  I'm sorry, Ms. Murley, I i nadvertently 
 
          7    interrupted you.  Please go ahead. 
 
          8              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could you please repeat 
 
          9    the question, please? 
 
         10              MR. SOULES:  Yes.  Are you  able to hear 
 
         11    me okay? 
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  Yes, it wa s just the 
 
         13    interruption led it to be a little c hoppy there. 
 
         14    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  Great.  Ms. Murley,  the 
 
         16    revenue -- a tax revenue impact anal ysis and an 
 
         17    economic impact analysis are differe nt ways of 
 
         18    measuring the economic impact of the  business for 
 
         19    some other type of activity; is that  a fair 
 
         20    statement? 
 
         21          A.  There are different ways o f measuring 
 
         22    the impact of a business or some sim ilar activity. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  And loo king on Page 2 
 
         24    of your testimony, starting on Line 3, it states 



 
 
                                                         9 
 
 
          1    that, quote, Staff Witness Buckley f ailed to address 
 
          2    the economic and revenue impacts of the HQ.  Do you 
 
          3    see that reference in your testimony ? 
 
          4          A.  Yes, I see that. 
 
          5          Q.  And your testimony address es a topic 
 
          6    that's not itself in Mr. Buckley's r ehearing 
 
          7    testimony, correct? 
 
          8          A.  I'm sorry.  Could you repe at that? 
 
          9          Q.  Yes.  Your testimony addre sses a topic 
 
         10    that is not discussed in Mr. Buckley 's rehearing 
 
         11    testimony, correct? 
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
         13              THE WITNESS:  Mr. Buckley' s testimony 
 
         14    does not include an economic impact of the 
 
         15    headquarters. 
 
         16    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         17          Q.  So you agree with me that your testimony 
 
         18    addresses a topic that is not discus sed in 
 
         19    Mr. Buckley's rehearing testimony, c orrect? 
 
         20              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
         21              THE WITNESS:  The topic of  the economic 
 
         22    impact of the headquarters is not di scussed in 
 
         23    Mr. Buckley's testimony. 
 
         24    By Mr. Soules: 
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          1          Q.  And in your testimony you' re not 
 
          2    disagreeing with my specific stateme nt that 
 
          3    Mr. Buckley made in his rehearing te stimony; is that 
 
          4    correct? 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
          6              THE WITNESS:  I believe th at Mr. Buckley 
 
          7    failed to quantify all of the benefi ts of Rider DMR. 
 
          8    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          9          Q.  Did Mr. Buckley quantify a ny of the 
 
         10    economic and revenue impact of the h eadquarters? 
 
         11          A.  No. 
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  And, Mr. S oules, just 
 
         13    one point of clarification.  When yo u say "economic 
 
         14    revenue impacts", you're referring t o those terms as 
 
         15    used in Ms. Murley's testimony? 
 
         16              MR. SOULES:  Yes. 
 
         17              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  Tha nk you. 
 
         18    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         19          Q.  With that clarification, M s. Murley, in 
 
         20    essence? 
 
         21          A.  Can you repeat the questio n? 
 
         22              MR. SOULES:  Could we have  the question 
 
         23    read back prior to Mr. Alexander's c larification? 
 
         24              (Question read back.) 
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          1              THE WITNESS:  So my answer  is no, 
 
          2    subject to the clarification. 
 
          3    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          4          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Ms. Mur ley, is there 
 
          5    any specific statement in Mr. Buckle y's rehearing 
 
          6    testimony that you disagree with? 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
          8              THE WITNESS:  I believe th ere was an 
 
          9    omission from his testimony in his f ailure to 
 
         10    quantify the benefit of the headquar ters. 
 
         11    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         12          Q.  So the answer to my questi on is no, 
 
         13    there's no specific statement exclud ed in 
 
         14    Mr. Buckley's testimony that you're disagreeing with 
 
         15    in your testimony, correct? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         17    answered, this is now the third time .  She's 
 
         18    explained what she disagrees with.  Go ahead. 
 
         19              THE WITNESS:  There is not  a specific 
 
         20    statement that I disagree with, ther e is an omission. 
 
         21    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         22          Q.  All right.  Ms. Murley, yo u said you 
 
         23    have a copy of Mr. Buckley's testimo ny with you? 
 
         24          A.  Yes. 
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          1          Q.  Could you -- 
 
          2              MR. SOULES:  Valerie, coul d we have that 
 
          3    marked as Deposition Exhibit 1.  And , Trevor, if you 
 
          4    need a copy, I believe someone may h ave an extra copy 
 
          5    of this. 
 
          6              MR. ALEXANDER:  Let's go o ff the record 
 
          7    for just a moment. 
 
          8              MR. SOULES:  Let's go off the record. 
 
          9              (Discussion off the record .) 
 
         10              MR. SOULES:  So off the re cord we 
 
         11    clarified that we actually do not ne ed Mr. Buckley's 
 
         12    testimony to be marked.  Instead I'm  just going to 
 
         13    ask Ms. Murley a couple questions ab out that 
 
         14    testimony. 
 
         15    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         16          Q.  So, Ms. Murley, if you cou ld please turn 
 
         17    to Page 7 of Mr. Buckley's rehearing  testimony. 
 
         18          A.  Okay. 
 
         19          Q.  Starting on Line 9 of the sentence that 
 
         20    reads, quote, Staff recommends that FE must keep its 
 
         21    corporate headquarters and nexus of operations in 
 
         22    Akron, Ohio for the entire term of t he electric 
 
         23    security plan (ESP) or the entire am ount of the 
 
         24    credit should be subject to refund.  Do you see that 
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          1    statement in Mr. Buckley's testimony ? 
 
          2          A.  Yes, I see that statement.  
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  And does your testi mony offer an 
 
          4    opinion about whether FirstEnergy Co rp. must keep its 
 
          5    corporate headquarters and nexus of operation in 
 
          6    Akron, Ohio for the entire term of t he electric 
 
          7    security plan? 
 
          8          A.  My testimony offers an eva luation of the 
 
          9    value of keeping the headquarters in  Akron. 
 
         10          Q.  But you're not offering an  opinion or 
 
         11    recommendation to the Commission abo ut whether this 
 
         12    should be a condition of the Staff p roposal, correct? 
 
         13          A.  Could you repeat that? 
 
         14              MR. SOULES:  Valerie, coul d you read the 
 
         15    question back? 
 
         16              (Question read back.) 
 
         17              THE WITNESS:  No, I am off ering an 
 
         18    opinion that it was a benefit that w as excluded from 
 
         19    this testimony. 
 
         20              MR. SOULES:  I'm sorry, co uld I get that 
 
         21    last answer read back? 
 
         22              (Answer read back.) 
 
         23    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         24          Q.  Ms. Murley, is it your und erstanding 
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          1    that Mr. Buckley's rehearing testimo ny attempted to 
 
          2    list all the benefits associated wit h FirstEnergy 
 
          3    Corp. keeping its headquarters in Ak ron, Ohio? 
 
          4          A.  He addressed the benefits related to 
 
          5    maintaining the credit position, but  did not address 
 
          6    the benefits related to maintaining the headquarters. 
 
          7          Q.  So if the Commission were to approve the 
 
          8    Staff proposal, customers will pay c harges to the 
 
          9    Company under the DMR, correct? 
 
         10              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that read 
 
         11    back? 
 
         12              (Question read back.) 
 
         13              THE WITNESS:  That is my u nderstanding 
 
         14    of Witness Buckley's testimony. 
 
         15    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         16          Q.  Are you offering any opini ons about 
 
         17    whether those DMR payments should be  refunded if 
 
         18    FirstEnergy Corp. moves its headquar ters and nexus of 
 
         19    operation out of Akron? 
 
         20          A.  No. 
 
         21          Q.  And you're not offering an y opinions 
 
         22    about whether the Staff should -- St rike that. 
 
         23              You're not offering any op inions about 
 
         24    whether the Commission should approv e the Staff 
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          1    proposal, correct? 
 
          2          A.  No. 
 
          3          Q.  And you're not offering an y opinions 
 
          4    about the level of funding that woul d be needed to 
 
          5    provide adequate credit support to t he Companies, 
 
          6    correct? 
 
          7          A.  Correct. 
 
          8          Q.  And you're not offering an y opinions 
 
          9    about the level of funding that woul d be needed to 
 
         10    provide credit support to FirstEnerg y Corp., correct? 
 
         11          A.  Correct. 
 
         12          Q.  Have you reviewed the rehe aring 
 
         13    testimony of Staff Witness Choueiki?  
 
         14          A.  No. 
 
         15          Q.  Have you reviewed the test imony of Staff 
 
         16    Witness Turkenton? 
 
         17          A.  No. 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  So let' s shift gears 
 
         19    a little bit. 
 
         20              So for your rehearing rebu ttal testimony 
 
         21    you filed six pages of testimony as well as a report 
 
         22    that's been labeled as Attachment SM -R-1, correct? 
 
         23          A.  Correct. 
 
         24          Q.  And your six pages of test imony 
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          1    summarize the results of the analyse s described in 
 
          2    Attachment SM-R-1; is that a fair st atement? 
 
          3          A.  Among other things, yes. 
 
          4          Q.  And when you say "among ot hers things", 
 
          5    you mean the discussion about your b ackground and 
 
          6    your consulting firm? 
 
          7          A.  Yes. 
 
          8          Q.  And all of the -- all of t he analysis 
 
          9    results that are presented in your t estimony could 
 
         10    also be found if Attachment SM-R-1, correct? 
 
         11          A.  Correct. 
 
         12          Q.  If you could please turn t o Page 5 of 
 
         13    Attachment SM-R-1. 
 
         14          A.  Yes. 
 
         15          Q.  And if we could look at Fi gure 2 for a 
 
         16    few minutes.  This table in Figure 2  summarizes your 
 
         17    estimate of the annual economic impa ct of FirstEnergy 
 
         18    Corp.'s headquarters on the State of  Ohio; is that 
 
         19    correct? 
 
         20          A.  Yes. 
 
         21          Q.  Okay.  So if we set aside the taxes 
 
         22    revenue impact for the time being, t he total 
 
         23    estimated economic impact of the hea dquarters is $568 
 
         24    million annually; is that correct? 
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          1          A.  That's correct. 
 
          2          Q.  And the $568 million estim ate includes 
 
          3    the $244.6 million personal income f igure that's also 
 
          4    shown in Figure 2, correct? 
 
          5          A.  By definition, output does  include, 
 
          6    among other things, the value of per sonal income or 
 
          7    employee compensation. 
 
          8          Q.  So you agree with me that that $568 
 
          9    million estimate includes the $244.6  million that 
 
         10    you're showing in Figure 2? 
 
         11          A.  Yes. 
 
         12          Q.  So the personal income tha t is generated 
 
         13    by FirstEnergy Corp.'s headquarters is a subset of 
 
         14    the total economic output of the hea dquarters; is 
 
         15    that an accurate statement? 
 
         16          A.  Yes.  And those two variab les are always 
 
         17    both listed when describing economic  impacts. 
 
         18          Q.  Thank you.  Ms. Murley, do  you have any 
 
         19    reason to think that FirstEnergy Cor p. might move its 
 
         20    headquarters out of Akron -- do you have any reason 
 
         21    to think that FirstEnergy Corporatio n might move its 
 
         22    headquarters out of Akron in the for eseeable future? 
 
         23          A.  No, I am not offering an o pinion about 
 
         24    that. 
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          1          Q.  Okay.  Are you offering an y opinions 
 
          2    about the likelihood that FirstEnerg y Corp. might 
 
          3    move its headquarters out of Akron i f the Commission 
 
          4    rejects the Companies' Modified Ride r RRS proposal? 
 
          5          A.  No. 
 
          6          Q.  Are you offering any opini ons about the 
 
          7    likelihood that FirstEnergy Corp. mi ght move its 
 
          8    headquarters out of Akron if the Com mission rejects 
 
          9    the Staff proposal? 
 
         10          A.  No.  I believe that this s hould be 
 
         11    included in Rider DMR, but I am not offering an 
 
         12    opinion about the likelihood of the headquarters 
 
         13    moving. 
 
         14          Q.  What do you mean by this s hould be 
 
         15    included in Rider DMR? 
 
         16          A.  Information about the valu e of 
 
         17    maintaining the headquarters in Akro n is not 
 
         18    addressed in Rider DMR, and I believ e it should be. 
 
         19          Q.  Are you offering an opinio n about the 
 
         20    level of funding that Rider DMR shou ld be set at? 
 
         21          A.  No, I am not. 
 
         22          Q.  Okay.  And you're not offe ring any 
 
         23    opinions about the likelihood that F irstEnergy Corp. 
 
         24    might move its headquarters out of A kron prior to 
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          1    May 31st, 2024, correct? 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
          3    answered.  Go ahead. 
 
          4              THE WITNESS:  Correct. 
 
          5    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          6          Q.  Has anyone employed by the  Company told 
 
          7    you that FirstEnergy Corp. might mov e its 
 
          8    headquarters out of Akron? 
 
          9              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         10    answered.  Go ahead. 
 
         11              THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
         12    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         13          Q.  Has anyone employed by Fir stEnergy 
 
         14    Service Company told you that FirstE nergy Corp. might 
 
         15    move its headquarters out of Akron? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         17    answered.  Go ahead. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
         19    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         20          Q.  Has anyone employed by Fir stEnergy 
 
         21    Solutions told you that FirstEnergy Corp. might move 
 
         22    its headquarters out of Akron? 
 
         23              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         24    answered.  Go ahead. 
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          1              THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
          2    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  We're going to talk  about the 
 
          4    steps you took in preparing your ana lyses.  So first 
 
          5    off, did anyone else at Applied Econ omics assist you 
 
          6    with your testimony and analyses? 
 
          7          A.  No. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  And FirstEnergy Cor p. provided 
 
          9    several of the inputs you used for y our economic 
 
         10    impact analyses, correct? 
 
         11          A.  FirstEnergy Service Compan y provided 
 
         12    those inputs. 
 
         13          Q.  And those inputs are prese nted in 
 
         14    Attachment A to Attachment SM-R-1, c orrect? 
 
         15          A.  Correct. 
 
         16          Q.  And when were those inputs  provided to 
 
         17    you? 
 
         18          A.  I'm sorry, when? 
 
         19          Q.  Yes, when. 
 
         20          A.  Earlier in July 2016. 
 
         21          Q.  Do you remember the exact date? 
 
         22          A.  No, I do not. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  And who specificall y provided 
 
         24    those inputs to you? 
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          1          A.  The Legal Department. 
 
          2          Q.  Okay.  Could you please tu rn to 
 
          3    Attachment A? 
 
          4          A.  Yes. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  Great.  So all of t he information 
 
          6    that's listed on this -- in this att achment was given 
 
          7    to you by FirstEnergy Service Compan y; is that 
 
          8    correct? 
 
          9          A.  Yes. 
 
         10          Q.  Okay.  If we could look at  the table 
 
         11    that's at the -- that's near the top  of Attachment A. 
 
         12    Do you see that table? 
 
         13          A.  Yes. 
 
         14          Q.  This table presents employ ment payroll 
 
         15    and covered dependent information fr om 2015, correct? 
 
         16          A.  Correct. 
 
         17          Q.  And these figures are for the Shared 
 
         18    Services employees that work at Firs tEnergy Corp. 
 
         19    headquarters, correct? 
 
         20          A.  These figures are for Shar ed Services 
 
         21    employees that work in Ohio. 
 
         22          Q.  And these employment figur es include 
 
         23    Shared Services employees that work outside of 
 
         24    headquarters; is that correct? 
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          1          A.  I don't know the exact wor k location 
 
          2    other than the fact that it is in Oh io. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  Did you do anything  to verify the 
 
          4    accuracy of the figures listed in th is table? 
 
          5          A.  No, because there's not an  outside or 
 
          6    secondary source of information that  would show me 
 
          7    the number of employees or payroll f or this 
 
          8    particular subsidiary specifically w ithin Ohio. 
 
          9          Q.  You relied entirely on Fir stEnergy 
 
         10    Service Company for the accuracy of the figures, 
 
         11    correct? 
 
         12          A.  Yes, because there was no secondary 
 
         13    source to verify that information. 
 
         14          Q.  Did you search for any sec ondary 
 
         15    sources? 
 
         16          A.  No, but as an experienced economist I 
 
         17    know that payroll figures for a spec ific subsidiary 
 
         18    and a specific state of a single com pany are not 
 
         19    going to be reported, for example, b y government 
 
         20    sources. 
 
         21          Q.  Do you know if they would be recorded in 
 
         22    Securities and Exchange Commission f ilings? 
 
         23          A.  Not for a specific state a nd a specific 
 
         24    subsidiary, given that it's a multi state -- 
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          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  Hold on.  The witness 
 
          2    wasn't finished with -- the witness wasn't finished 
 
          3    with her response. 
 
          4              THE WITNESS:  -- given tha t it's a 
 
          5    company that operates in multiple st ates. 
 
          6    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          7          Q.  Thank you.  And I do apolo gize, 
 
          8    Ms. Murley.  I thought you were done . 
 
          9              You didn't review any SEC filings in 
 
         10    preparing your rehearing testimony, correct? 
 
         11          A.  Could you repeat that? 
 
         12          Q.  Did you review any SEC fil ings in 
 
         13    preparing your rehearing testimony? 
 
         14          A.  No. 
 
         15          Q.  Did you review any FirstEn ergy Corp. 
 
         16    shareholder presentations when prepa ring your 
 
         17    rehearing testimony? 
 
         18          A.  No. 
 
         19          Q.  Do you know what the Share d Services 
 
         20    employment and payroll figures are f or any year prior 
 
         21    to 2015? 
 
         22          A.  No. 
 
         23          Q.  You didn't review any pre2 015 employment 
 
         24    and payroll data in preparing your t estimony; is that 
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          1    correct? 
 
          2          A.  Not for Shared Services, b ecause I was 
 
          3    doing a point in time analysis for 2 015. 
 
          4          Q.  Did you review historical data, some 
 
          5    other type of historical data for pr eparing your 
 
          6    rehearing testimony? 
 
          7          A.  When I submitted testimony  about Sammis 
 
          8    and Davis-Besse, I had information a bout employment 
 
          9    and payroll for those plants from ye ars prior to 
 
         10    2015. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
         12              Do you know what the curre nt employment 
 
         13    and payroll is for the Shared Servic es employees that 
 
         14    are represented in this in Attachmen t A? 
 
         15          A.  The information shown in A ttachment A is 
 
         16    as of December 31st, 2015, and I did  inquire as to 
 
         17    whether that was similar to the curr ent level of 
 
         18    employment and I was told that yes, it is. 
 
         19          Q.  Okay.  But you didn't get any exact 
 
         20    figures of the current employment, c orrect? 
 
         21          A.  Correct.  Not as I, you kn ow, sit here 
 
         22    today. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Still looking at At tachment A, do 
 
         24    you see the first bullet point, the one that begins, 
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          1    quote, FirstEnergy Corp. is a Fortun e 500 company? 
 
          2          A.  Yes. 
 
          3          Q.  Did you do anything to ver ify the 
 
          4    accuracy of the information presente d in that bullet 
 
          5    point? 
 
          6          A.  Yes, I did look up the For tune 500 
 
          7    companies in Ohio for 2016. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  Did you look up the  Fortune 500 
 
          9    companies for 2008? 
 
         10          A.  Yes, I did, for Ohio. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  So you did verify t he information 
 
         12    in that bullet point? 
 
         13          A.  Yes, I did. 
 
         14          Q.  You see the second bullet point, that 
 
         15    one that begins, quote, the FirstEne rgy Corp.? 
 
         16          A.  Yes. 
 
         17          Q.  Did you do anything to ver ify the 
 
         18    accuracy of the information presente d in that bullet 
 
         19    point? 
 
         20          A.  No, that information wasn' t part of my 
 
         21    economic impact analysis, but I did restate that 
 
         22    information in my report. 
 
         23          Q.  So similar questions for t he third 
 
         24    bullet point, did you do anything to  verify the 
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          1    accuracy of the information presente d in that bullet 
 
          2    point? 
 
          3          A.  No.  I don't believe there  would be any 
 
          4    secondary source for me to verify th at information 
 
          5    about engagement in community organi zations. 
 
          6          Q.  Do you see the fourth bull et point, the 
 
          7    one that begins, quote, FirstEnergy Corp.'s Ohio 
 
          8    employees? 
 
          9          A.  Yes. 
 
         10          Q.  Did you do anything to ver ify the 
 
         11    accuracy of the information presente d in that bullet 
 
         12    point? 
 
         13          A.  No. 
 
         14          Q.  Do you see the fifth bulle t point, the 
 
         15    one that begins FirstEnergy Corp. an d generally 
 
         16    spending over $10 million? 
 
         17          A.  Yes, I see it. 
 
         18          Q.  Did you do anything to ver ify the 
 
         19    accuracy of the information presente d in that bullet 
 
         20    point? 
 
         21          A.  No, I did not.  And just t o reiterate, 
 
         22    none of those statements were used i n my actual 
 
         23    calculation of the economic impact. 
 
         24          Q.  And that information was p resented in 
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          1    the text, not only your Attachment S M-R-1, correct? 
 
          2          A.  Yes, I presented it in the  text of the 
 
          3    attachment. 
 
          4          Q.  Okay.  Just to save some t ime, do you 
 
          5    see the remaining five bullet points  in Attachment A? 
 
          6          A.  Yes. 
 
          7          Q.  Did you do anything to ver ify the 
 
          8    accuracy of the information presente d in those five 
 
          9    bullet points? 
 
         10          A.  No. 
 
         11          Q.  Ms. Murley, could you plea se turn to 
 
         12    Page 3 of Attachment SM-R-1? 
 
         13          A.  Yes. 
 
         14          Q.  So starting in the middle of that page 
 
         15    there's a section that -- quote, "Ot her Community 
 
         16    Impacts", and then that runs down un til Figure 1 on 
 
         17    the following page.  Do you see thos e -- that 
 
         18    discussion? 
 
         19          A.  Yes. 
 
         20          Q.  Is it fair to say that you  have not 
 
         21    independently verified any of the in formation 
 
         22    presented in the Other Community Imp acts section? 
 
         23          A.  Correct, nor did I use it in my impact 
 
         24    calculations. 
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          1          Q.  How many hours did you spe nd preparing 
 
          2    the report that's presented as Attac hment SM-R-1? 
 
          3              MR. ALEXANDER:  I'm sorry,  could I have 
 
          4    the last question and answer reread,  please. 
 
          5              (Record read back.) 
 
          6              MR. ALEXANDER:  Mr. Soules , just a point 
 
          7    of clarification.  When you were dir ecting the 
 
          8    witness to the Other Community Impac ts section, you 
 
          9    referenced Figure 1.  Did you intend  to include 
 
         10    Figure 1 in that question? 
 
         11              MR. SOULES:  I did not.  I  meant -- I 
 
         12    was discussing the paragraph leading  up until right 
 
         13    before Figure 1. 
 
         14              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  So with that 
 
         15    clarification, Ms. Murley, would tha t change your 
 
         16    answer? 
 
         17              THE WITNESS:  No, that cla rification 
 
         18    would not change my answer. 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  And the re ason I was 
 
         20    asking, you did -- Figure 1 does add ress the results 
 
         21    of your analysis. 
 
         22              THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's correct.  I 
 
         23    was only answering with respect to t he bulleted text. 
 
         24              MR. SOULES:  I'm sorry, Va lerie, could 
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          1    we have what Trevor just said read b ack? 
 
          2              (Record read back.) 
 
          3    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          4          Q.  So, Ms. Murley, would it b e fair to say 
 
          5    that the Other Community Impacts sec tion of your 
 
          6    report is actually not part of the a nalysis that 
 
          7    you're presenting to the Commission?  
 
          8              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
          9              THE WITNESS:  It's part of  what I am 
 
         10    presenting to the Commission.  It go es to support the 
 
         11    value of having a headquarters locat ion. 
 
         12              MR. SOULES:  I'm sorry, co uld we have 
 
         13    that answer read back? 
 
         14              (Record read back.) 
 
         15              MR. SOULES:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
         16    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         17          Q.  So back to the question th at I asked 
 
         18    before our little detour.  Ms. Murle y, how many hours 
 
         19    did you spend preparing the report t hat is presented 
 
         20    in Attachment SM-R-1? 
 
         21          A.  I don't have the answer to  that with me. 
 
         22          Q.  Do you have a ballpark sen se of the 
 
         23    number of hours spent preparing the report? 
 
         24          A.  No, I would not be comfort able answering 



 
 
                                                         30 
 
 
          1    that without verifying it. 
 
          2          Q.  And you prepared this repo rt this month, 
 
          3    in July of 2016, correct? 
 
          4          A.  Yes. 
 
          5          Q.  Do you know if you spent m ore than ten 
 
          6    hours preparing the report? 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
          8    answered. 
 
          9              THE WITNESS:  I don't know  the exact 
 
         10    number of hours that I spent. 
 
         11    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         12          Q.  And you don't know if it w as more or 
 
         13    less than 10 hours; is that a fair s tatement? 
 
         14              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that 
 
         15    question reread, please? 
 
         16              (Question read back.) 
 
         17              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         18    answered.  She already said she didn 't want to 
 
         19    speculate.  Go ahead. 
 
         20              THE WITNESS:  I don't know  the exact 
 
         21    number of hours. 
 
         22    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         23          Q.  Do you know how many hours  you spent 
 
         24    preparing the six pages of your writ ten testimony? 
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          1          A.  No, I do not. 
 
          2          Q.  Do you have a ballpark sen se of how many 
 
          3    hours you spent preparing your writt en testimony? 
 
          4          A.  No, I do not. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  Could you please tu rn to Page 3 
 
          6    of your testimony? 
 
          7          A.  Yes. 
 
          8          Q.  Starting on Line 10 there' s a sentence 
 
          9    that reads, quote, The direct output  of the HQ is 
 
         10    therefore defined as the value of th e services 
 
         11    produced.  Do you see that statement  in your 
 
         12    testimony? 
 
         13          A.  Yes, I see that. 
 
         14          Q.  Okay.  Now, if we could tu rn back to 
 
         15    Page 5 of Attachment SM-R-1. 
 
         16          A.  Okay. 
 
         17          Q.  So looking again at Figure  2, the first 
 
         18    row and first column presents a $295 .5 million 
 
         19    figure.  Do you see that figure? 
 
         20          A.  Yes, I see that. 
 
         21          Q.  And that figure represents  the output of 
 
         22    FirstEnergy Corp.'s headquarters ope ration, correct? 
 
         23          A.  Yes, that is direct output . 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  So you said that wa s direct 
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          1    output? 
 
          2          A.  Yes. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  Great.  So it's you r belief that 
 
          4    the value of the services provided b y the 
 
          5    headquarters operation is $295.5 mil lion annually; is 
 
          6    that correct? 
 
          7          A.  Based on the assumptions i n the IMPLAN 
 
          8    multipliers which I used to estimate  direct output, I 
 
          9    believe that is the estimate of dire ct output. 
 
         10              MR. SOULES:  Can I have th at answer read 
 
         11    back? 
 
         12              (Question read back.) 
 
         13    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         14          Q.  And, Ms. Murley, that nece ssarily means 
 
         15    that you believe that the value of t he services 
 
         16    provided by those operations is $295 .5 million, 
 
         17    correct? 
 
         18          A.  Yeah, that is the definiti on of direct 
 
         19    output in this headquarters impact. 
 
         20          Q.  And do you have any reason  to doubt the 
 
         21    accuracy of the IMPLAN function that  you referenced a 
 
         22    moment ago? 
 
         23          A.  No, IMPLAN is a widely use d and widely 
 
         24    respected model within federal gover nment agencies 
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          1    and within academia.  I have no reas on to believe 
 
          2    that the assumptions would not be re asonable. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  And you generated t he $295.5 
 
          4    million figure by dividing the $151. 3 million payroll 
 
          5    figure by an IMPLAN multiplier; is t hat correct? 
 
          6          A.  That's correct. 
 
          7          Q.  But you didn't have a dire ct measurement 
 
          8    of output, instead you back calculat ed that number by 
 
          9    using personal income, correct? 
 
         10              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Vague.  Go 
 
         11    ahead, if you can. 
 
         12              THE WITNESS:  Output is a concept that 
 
         13    is related to economic impact analys is and is derived 
 
         14    on the basis of employment or income  in standard 
 
         15    methodology for economic impact anal ysis. 
 
         16              MR. SOULES:  Could we have  that last 
 
         17    question and answer read back? 
 
         18              (Record read back.) 
 
         19              MR. SOULES:  Thank you. 
 
         20    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         21          Q.  Ms. Murley, other than you r analysis, 
 
         22    the value of the services provided b y the 
 
         23    headquarters is directly tied to the  compensation 
 
         24    being paid to the Shared Services em ployees, correct? 
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          1          A.  Yes, the value of the serv ices you 
 
          2    provide includes the cost of your em ployees. 
 
          3          Q.  Just so I understand how t his direct 
 
          4    output figure is developed, if First Energy Corp. were 
 
          5    to double the salaries of everyone w orking in the 
 
          6    Shared Services department, the dire ct output of 
 
          7    headquarters would also double to ap proximately $590 
 
          8    million; is that correct? 
 
          9          A.  Based on the way that I ha ve applied the 
 
         10    multipliers, if personal income were  to double, 
 
         11    output would also double. 
 
         12              However, it's also possibl e to estimate 
 
         13    output based on employment, and if t he personal 
 
         14    income doubled that would provide a fairly 
 
         15    unreasonable income per employee. 
 
         16          Q.  So I'm sorry, were you ind icating that 
 
         17    there's a way to calculate that dire ct output figure 
 
         18    without using the personal income, b ut instead using 
 
         19    the employment figure only? 
 
         20          A.  You can use either, and I choose to use 
 
         21    personal income because I think it's  a better 
 
         22    representation of the value of the s ervices provided. 
 
         23    But the difference should be minimal . 
 
         24          Q.  How would you do the calcu lation if you 
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          1    wanted to use the employment figure as opposed to 
 
          2    personal income figure? 
 
          3          A.  You would take employment and divide it 
 
          4    by the direct employment multiplier to get direct 
 
          5    output. 
 
          6          Q.  Is that direct employment multiplier 
 
          7    included in your work papers? 
 
          8          A.  Yes, it is. 
 
          9          Q.  Do you have a copy of your  work papers 
 
         10    with you? 
 
         11          A.  Yes, I do. 
 
         12          Q.  Can you point me to where that 
 
         13    multiplier is? 
 
         14          A.  There's a table starting o n the second 
 
         15    page of the work papers, assuming yo u're looking at 
 
         16    it on paper, that has all of the mul tipliers. 
 
         17          Q.  Yes, I see that. 
 
         18          A.  So there's direct multipli ers for 
 
         19    output, jobs, and income. 
 
         20          Q.  I see that as well.  And w hich specific 
 
         21    multiplier would you use to estimate  direct output? 
 
         22          A.  4.326. 
 
         23          Q.  Thank you.  Just you're no t offering any 
 
         24    opinions in this case about the reas onableness of the 
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          1    personal income being paid to Shared  Services 
 
          2    employees by FirstEnergy Corp., corr ect? 
 
          3          A.  No. 
 
          4          Q.  Okay.  And the $295.5 mill ion figure is 
 
          5    not directly tied to the profitabili ty of FirstEnergy 
 
          6    Corp., correct? 
 
          7          A.  Correct. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  I want to talk for just a couple 
 
          9    minutes about the other inputs that you used for your 
 
         10    analyses. 
 
         11              First of all, you used sev eral IMPLAN 
 
         12    multipliers -- so just so we keep th e question, 
 
         13    Ms. Murley, you used several IMPLAN multipliers for 
 
         14    your economic impact analysis, corre ct? 
 
         15          A.  I used several different n umbers all 
 
         16    related to a particular industry and  a particular 
 
         17    geography, yes. 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  And then you also u sed a state 
 
         19    and county tax rate information for the revenue 
 
         20    impact analysis, correct? 
 
         21          A.  That is correct. 
 
         22          Q.  Do you know which county F irstEnergy 
 
         23    Corp.'s headquarters are located in?  
 
         24          A.  Summit. 
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          1          Q.  Okay.  And apart from the inputs that we 
 
          2    have just discussed this afternoon, were there any 
 
          3    other inputs that you used for the a nalyses presented 
 
          4    in Attachment SM-R-1? 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Overbroad. 
 
          6    Go ahead. 
 
          7              THE WITNESS:  All of the i nputs that I 
 
          8    used were presented in the work pape rs or in 
 
          9    Attachment A. 
 
         10              MR. SOULES:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
         11    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         12          Q.  Are you still on Page 5 of  SM-R-1? 
 
         13          A.  Yes. 
 
         14          Q.  Okay.  Great.  So looking again at 
 
         15    Figure 2, the figures that are repor ted in these 
 
         16    vendor purchases row were generated using an IMPLAN 
 
         17    multiplier, correct? 
 
         18          A.  Could you repeat that? 
 
         19          Q.  The figures that are repor ted in the 
 
         20    vendor purchases row, the second row  of the table, 
 
         21    were generated using an IMPLAN multi plier; is that 
 
         22    correct? 
 
         23          A.  That's correct. 
 
         24          Q.  Did you take any steps to verify whether 
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          1    actual vendor purchases are $110.2 m illion? 
 
          2          A.  I relied on the IMPLAN ass umptions for 
 
          3    that type of industry in Ohio becaus e there are 
 
          4    inherent difficulties with gathering  information 
 
          5    about vendor purchases. 
 
          6              For example, where invoice s are sent for 
 
          7    particular goods and services is not  necessarily the 
 
          8    same as where that good or service w as produced. 
 
          9              MR. SOULES:  Could I have that last 
 
         10    answer read back? 
 
         11              (Answer read back.) 
 
         12              MR. SOULES:  Thank you. 
 
         13    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         14          Q.  Ms. Murley, you didn't tak e any steps to 
 
         15    independently verify that $110.2 mil lion, correct? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         17    answered. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  I relied on the IMPLAN 
 
         19    assumptions, which is a standard pra ctice. 
 
         20    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         21          Q.  Okay.  Did you take any st eps to verify 
 
         22    whether actual vendor purchases supp ort 756 jobs? 
 
         23              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         24    answered. 



 
 
                                                         39 
 
 
          1              THE WITNESS:  No, I relied  on the IMPLAN 
 
          2    assumptions. 
 
          3    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          4          Q.  Did you take any steps to verify whether 
 
          5    actual vendor personal income -- or strike that. 
 
          6              Did you take any steps to verify whether 
 
          7    actual vendor purchases generate $39 .8 million of 
 
          8    personal income? 
 
          9              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         10    answered. 
 
         11              THE WITNESS:  No, I relied  on the IMPLAN 
 
         12    assumptions. 
 
         13    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         14          Q.  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
         15              MR. SOULES:  Trevor, the l ast two 
 
         16    questions were not previously asked,  so I will note 
 
         17    on the record that I disagree with t hose objections. 
 
         18              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  I d on't know that 
 
         19    debating with me helps, but go ahead . 
 
         20    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         21          Q.  Ms. Murley, the figures th at are 
 
         22    reported in the local employee spend ing row were 
 
         23    generated using an IMPLAN multiplier , correct? 
 
         24          A.  Correct. 
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          1          Q.  Did you take any steps to verify whether 
 
          2    actual local employee spending is $1 62.3 million? 
 
          3          A.  No, I relied on the IMPLAN  assumptions. 
 
          4          Q.  And did you rely entirely on the IMPLAN 
 
          5    assumption for the 1,291 jobs figure  recorded in that 
 
          6    row? 
 
          7          A.  Yes.  That's the way econo mic impact 
 
          8    analyses are done. 
 
          9          Q.  And did you rely entirely on the IMPLAN 
 
         10    multiplier for the $53.5 million fig ure listed in 
 
         11    that row? 
 
         12          A.  Yes, the personal income a ssociated with 
 
         13    local employee spending, I relied on  the IMPLAN 
 
         14    assumptions. 
 
         15          Q.  So is it fair to say that you did not 
 
         16    evaluate whether the IMPLAN generate d figures are 
 
         17    consistent with the actual economic impact of local 
 
         18    employee spending? 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that 
 
         20    question reread, please? 
 
         21              (Question read back.) 
 
         22              THE WITNESS:  Correct.  Th ere would be 
 
         23    no practical way to verify the actua l household 
 
         24    spending of those 1,360 employees. 
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          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  I believe you may have 
 
          2    misheard that.  I think the witness may have misheard 
 
          3    the question. 
 
          4              THE WITNESS:  Could you re peat the 
 
          5    question? 
 
          6              MR. SOULES:  I'm sorry, I didn't hear -- 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  I think th e witness may 
 
          8    have misheard the previous question and answered 
 
          9    related to a different topic than wh at you had asked. 
 
         10              (Question read back.) 
 
         11              THE WITNESS:  Could I rest ate my answer? 
 
         12              MR. SOULES:  Please, if yo u need to 
 
         13    clarify. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  I relied on the IMPLAN 
 
         15    assumptions for estimating local emp loyee spending. 
 
         16    By Mr. Soules: 
 
         17          Q.  And you did not evaluate w hether the 
 
         18    IMPLAN developed figures are consist ent with the 
 
         19    actual economic impact of local empl oyee spending, 
 
         20    correct? 
 
         21          A.  There would be no practica l way to 
 
         22    evaluate that, so I relied on the IM PLAN multipliers, 
 
         23    which is the standard practice. 
 
         24          Q.  So the answer to my prior question is 
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          1    correct, you did not evaluate whethe r the IMPLAN 
 
          2    developed figures are consistent wit h the actual 
 
          3    economic impact of local employee sp ending? 
 
          4              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
          5    answered. 
 
          6              THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's correct. 
 
          7    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          8          Q.  And going up to the second  line, the 
 
          9    vendor purchases line, is it fair to  say that you did 
 
         10    not evaluate whether the IMPLAN gene rated figures are 
 
         11    consistent with the actual economic impact for vendor 
 
         12    purchases? 
 
         13          A.  I did not evaluate whether  the economic 
 
         14    impacts that I estimated based on th e IMPLAN 
 
         15    multipliers were consistent with act ual vendor 
 
         16    purchases. 
 
         17          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Ms. Mur ley, you're 
 
         18    familiar with the phrase "opportunit y costs", 
 
         19    correct? 
 
         20          A.  Yes. 
 
         21          Q.  Would you agree that, gene rally 
 
         22    speaking, opportunity costs means th at if you are 
 
         23    given enough spending on activity A in order to spend 
 
         24    on activity B, there's an opportunit y cost to doing 
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          1    activity B because you could not do activity A? 
 
          2          A.  Yes, that's correct. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  Going back to the S taff proposal 
 
          4    we were discussing earlier.  Under t he Staff proposal 
 
          5    the Companies' customers would pay $ 131 million to 
 
          6    the Company annually, at least per y ear, correct? 
 
          7          A.  Yes, that's my understandi ng of the 
 
          8    Staff proposal. 
 
          9          Q.  So under that Staff propos al customers 
 
         10    would end up paying $393 million or more to the 
 
         11    Company, correct? 
 
         12          A.  I don't know. 
 
         13          Q.  Why don't you know? 
 
         14          A.  So just to clarify, you're  taking the 
 
         15    $131 million number and multiplying it by three? 
 
         16          Q.  Yes.  With that understand ing, under the 
 
         17    Staff proposal customers could end u p paying $393 
 
         18    million to the Company; is that corr ect? 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  Just a poi nt of 
 
         20    clarification, Mr. Soules, because t he phone -- did 
 
         21    you say "could" or "would"? 
 
         22              MR. SOULES:  I appreciate the 
 
         23    clarification.  Let me rephrase. 
 
         24    By Mr. Soules: 
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          1          Q.  Under the Staff proposal, Ms. Murley, 
 
          2    customers would end up paying $393 m illion to the 
 
          3    Company, correct? 
 
          4              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.  
 
          5              THE WITNESS:  I see that t hat's the 
 
          6    annual revenue needed times three. 
 
          7    By Mr. Soules: 
 
          8          Q.  And is it your understandi ng that the 
 
          9    Staff proposal also contemplates a p ossibility that 
 
         10    the DMR could be extended for a four th and fifth 
 
         11    year? 
 
         12          A.  I am not familiar with tha t assumption. 
 
         13          Q.  So is it your understandin g that the -- 
 
         14    under the Staff proposal, that the D MR would end 
 
         15    after three years? 
 
         16          A.  Yes, that's my understandi ng. 
 
         17          Q.  Okay.  Customers would bea r an 
 
         18    opportunity cost if they were forced  to pay the DMR 
 
         19    to the Companies, correct? 
 
         20          A.  If by that you mean that t hey would need 
 
         21    to reallocate their spending toward utilities versus 
 
         22    other items, yes. 
 
         23          Q.  Thank you.  And the analys is presented 
 
         24    in your testimony does not address t hose opportunity 
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          1    costs of the DMR, correct? 
 
          2          A.  Correct.  I did not do a c ost benefit 
 
          3    analysis and I did not analyze the i mpacts of cost to 
 
          4    customers. 
 
          5          Q.  And so you would not have analyzed 
 
          6    either direct, indirect, or induced impacts to 
 
          7    customers resulting from their payme nt of the DMR to 
 
          8    the Company; is that a fair statemen t? 
 
          9          A.  Yes; nor did I analyze the  cost and 
 
         10    benefits. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  And the analyses th at are 
 
         12    presented in your testimony do not a ddress 
 
         13    opportunity costs at all, correct? 
 
         14          A.  Correct, because that is a  concept 
 
         15    related to a cost benefit analysis, and I did an 
 
         16    economic impact analysis. 
 
         17          Q.  And you say you did not do  any kind of a 
 
         18    cost benefit analysis for your rehea ring testimony, 
 
         19    correct? 
 
         20          A.  Correct. 
 
         21              MR. SOULES:  All right.  T hank you, 
 
         22    Ms. Murley.  I have no further quest ions. 
 
         23              MR. ALEXANDER:  Let's go o ff the record 
 
         24    for just a moment. 
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          1              (Discussion off the record .) 
 
          2                        - - - 
 
          3                    CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          4              MS. PETRUCCI:  We'll go ba ck on the 
 
          5    record, then. 
 
          6    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
          7          Q.  Ms. Murley, do you have an y changes or 
 
          8    corrections to your rebuttal reheari ng testimony? 
 
          9          A.  No. 
 
         10          Q.  Okay.  What testimony did you review 
 
         11    before preparing your rebuttal rehea ring testimony? 
 
         12          A.  Are you asking other peopl e's testimony 
 
         13    that I looked at? 
 
         14          Q.  Yes. 
 
         15          A.  I looked at Witness Buckle y's testimony. 
 
         16          Q.  Was there any other testim ony that you 
 
         17    reviewed before preparing your rebut tal rehearing 
 
         18    testimony? 
 
         19          A.  No. 
 
         20          Q.  Did you review any transcr ipts from the 
 
         21    hearing, in the rehearing phase of t his proceeding, 
 
         22    before preparing your testimony? 
 
         23          A.  Not transcripts from the r ehearing 
 
         24    phase, no. 
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          1          Q.  And with respect to Staff Witness 
 
          2    Buckley's rehearing testimony, are t here any specific 
 
          3    statements in the testimony, in his testimony, that 
 
          4    you disagree with? 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
          6    answered.  Go ahead. 
 
          7              THE WITNESS:  No.  I belie ve there is an 
 
          8    omission in that he did not talk abo ut the benefit of 
 
          9    the headquarters remaining in Ohio. 
 
         10    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         11          Q.  And does your economic imp act 
 
         12    analysis -- Strike that. 
 
         13              How does your economic imp act analysis 
 
         14    rebut the staff's proposal? 
 
         15              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Calls for 
 
         16    legal conclusion.  Go ahead. 
 
         17              THE WITNESS:  It provides information on 
 
         18    the benefits of the headquarters rem aining in Ohio, 
 
         19    and the headquarters are expressly c onnected to the 
 
         20    Rider in Witness Buckley's testimony , but that 
 
         21    benefit is not quantified. 
 
         22    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         23          Q.  And by that do you mean th at your 
 
         24    impact -- your economic impact analy sis provides 
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          1    additional information for the Commi ssion to consider 
 
          2    for purposes of its consideration of  the Staff's 
 
          3    proposal in this proceeding? 
 
          4          A.  Yes. 
 
          5          Q.  How does the economic impa ct of 
 
          6    FirstEnergy Corp.'s headquarters com pare with the 
 
          7    other business operations of FirstEn ergy affiliates 
 
          8    in Ohio? 
 
          9          A.  I haven't evaluated the ec onomic impacts 
 
         10    of the other affiliates in Ohio, so I could not 
 
         11    comment on that. 
 
         12          Q.  If FirstEnergy Corp. were to leave its 
 
         13    headquarters in Akron there would be  no resulting 
 
         14    economic impact on the local and sta te economy, 
 
         15    correct? 
 
         16          A.  The impact that the headqu arters is 
 
         17    currently having would continue if t he headquarters 
 
         18    were to remain in Akron. 
 
         19          Q.  When were you retained to do this 
 
         20    economic impact analysis? 
 
         21              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         22    answered to Mr. Soules, but go ahead . 
 
         23              THE WITNESS:  And you're r eferring to 
 
         24    the impact analysis of the headquart ers? 
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          1    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
          2          Q.  Yes. 
 
          3          A.  In July of 2016. 
 
          4          Q.  Do you know more specifica lly if it was 
 
          5    in the beginning of July, the middle  of July? 
 
          6              MR. ALEXANDER:  Again, ask ed and 
 
          7    answered to Mr. Soules. 
 
          8              MS. PETRUCCI:  Actually, h is question 
 
          9    was when did she conduct the study.  My question is 
 
         10    when was she retained to conduct the  study, so I'm 
 
         11    being very specific there. 
 
         12              THE WITNESS:  I do not kno w the exact 
 
         13    date. 
 
         14    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         15          Q.  Can you give me an estimat e as to what 
 
         16    part of the month in which you were retained to 
 
         17    conduct the economic impact analysis  of the 
 
         18    headquarters? 
 
         19          A.  Early in the month, but I do not know 
 
         20    the exact date. 
 
         21          Q.  When did you start receivi ng information 
 
         22    from FirstEnergy Corp. for purposes of conducting 
 
         23    your economic impact analysis of the  headquarters? 
 
         24          A.  Very soon after I was init ially 
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          1    contacted, but I do not know the exa ct date. 
 
          2          Q.  And if we could turn to At tachment A of 
 
          3    your Attachment SM-R-1.  Of the info rmation contained 
 
          4    in Attachment A, which statements we re relied upon 
 
          5    you for purposes of your economic im pact analysis, 
 
          6    relied upon by you? 
 
          7          A.  When you say for the purpo ses of my 
 
          8    economic impact analysis, are you re ferring to the 
 
          9    results presented in Figure 2 and Fi gure 3? 
 
         10          Q.  Let's start with Figure 2.   Let's divide 
 
         11    it up, and why don't you tell me whi ch parts of the 
 
         12    information on Attachment A you reli ed upon in order 
 
         13    to develop the information that's co ntained in 
 
         14    Figure 2? 
 
         15          A.  In order to calculate the economic 
 
         16    impact shown in Figure 2 I used the information on 
 
         17    2015 employees and gross payroll lis ted in 
 
         18    Attachment A. 
 
         19          Q.  Was there anything else li sted in 
 
         20    Attachment A that you also relied up on? 
 
         21          A.  Not that was listed in Att achment A. 
 
         22          Q.  Okay.  And then for purpos es of Figure 
 
         23    3, what information in Attachment A did you rely 
 
         24    upon? 
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          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection as to the last 
 
          2    question.  I think this is more a cl arification than 
 
          3    anything else, but when you asked wh at information 
 
          4    she relied upon, were you referring to the 
 
          5    calculation, or the definition? 
 
          6              And I'm referring strictly  to the last 
 
          7    bullet point in Attachment A with re gard to 
 
          8    FirstEnergy Corp. employees. 
 
          9              So with regard to your que stion, if 
 
         10    you're asking for the calculation, I  think the record 
 
         11    is clear.  If you were asking with r egard to the 
 
         12    definition of the employees, then I' m not sure it is. 
 
         13              MS. PETRUCCI:  Okay.  I'll  try again. 
 
         14              MR. ALEXANDER:  Thank you.  
 
         15    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         16          Q.  For purposes of developing  the 
 
         17    information that you present in Figu re 3, what 
 
         18    information on Attachment A did you rely upon, if 
 
         19    any? 
 
         20          A.  In Figure 3, which is the revenue 
 
         21    impact, the information that I relie d on in 
 
         22    Attachment A, because there's other information that 
 
         23    was not in attachment, would include  the number of 
 
         24    employees, the gross payroll, and th e number of 
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          1    covered dependents. 
 
          2          Q.  Now, looking at the second -to-last 
 
          3    bullet on Attachment A, there's a re ference there to 
 
          4    264 additional local employees who m ay migrate. 
 
          5    Actually, I'm sorry -- the 264 gener ation support 
 
          6    employees. 
 
          7              Can you tell me what that refers to? 
 
          8    What type of employees are you refer ring to there? 
 
          9          A.  So my impact analysis incl udes all the 
 
         10    Shared Service employees in Ohio.  T hese 264 people 
 
         11    who also work in Ohio are not part o f Shared 
 
         12    Services, they are part of generatio n. 
 
         13              They provide services simi lar to 
 
         14    services provided by employees in th e Shared Services 
 
         15    area, but they were not included in my analysis 
 
         16    because they are not part of the emp loyee count for 
 
         17    Shared Services. 
 
         18          Q.  And that's because they ar e not in the 
 
         19    headquarters, is that accurate? 
 
         20          A.  I don't know where their l ocation is 
 
         21    other than that it's in Ohio. 
 
         22          Q.  Your analysis does not tak e into account 
 
         23    the -- let me step back for a second . 
 
         24              Have you reviewed the test imony 
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          1    presented by Ms. Mikkelsen just rece ntly -- 
 
          2          A.  No. 
 
          3          Q.  -- in this proceeding? 
 
          4          A.  No, I have not. 
 
          5          Q.  Then it's fair to say that  your 
 
          6    testimony and your analysis doesn't take into account 
 
          7    what is presented by Ms. Mikkelsen f or purposes of 
 
          8    Rider DMR; is that accurate? 
 
          9          A.  I am not familiar with Ms.  Mikkelsen's 
 
         10    testimony. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  Do you believe that  keeping the 
 
         12    headquarters for FirstEnergy Corp. i n Akron 
 
         13    constitutes economic development? 
 
         14          A.  Economic development inclu des both 
 
         15    retention and attraction and expansi on of companies, 
 
         16    and so keeping the headquarters in O hio is a 
 
         17    retention activity as far as economi c development is 
 
         18    concerned. 
 
         19          Q.  And you said three things,  retention, 
 
         20    expansion and? 
 
         21          A.  Attraction. 
 
         22          Q.  Attraction. 
 
         23              MS. PETRUCCI:  I don't hav e any further 
 
         24    questions.  Thank you. 
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          1                        - - - 
 
          2                   CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          3    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          4          Q.  My name is Bill Michael an d I'm an 
 
          5    attorney with the Ohio Consumers' Co unsel.  We 
 
          6    represent FirstEnergy utilities, res idential utility 
 
          7    customers. 
 
          8              If you don't know if First Energy's Akron 
 
          9    headquarters is going to move, why d o you believe 
 
         10    that the purported economic benefits  should be 
 
         11    included in the DMR Rider? 
 
         12          A.  Because the testimony prov ided by 
 
         13    Witness Buckley expressly connects t he headquarters 
 
         14    remaining in Akron with Rider DMR. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  But if -- if the he adquarters 
 
         16    stays in Akron, irrespective of whet her or not the 
 
         17    money is included in the DMR Rider, Ohioans are still 
 
         18    going to get the benefits of $568 mi llion that you 
 
         19    estimate, right? 
 
         20          A.  Could you repeat that? 
 
         21              (Question read back.) 
 
         22              THE WITNESS:  If the headq uarters stays 
 
         23    in Akron, Ohioans will continue to b enefit from that, 
 
         24    but that benefit is not stated in Wi tness Buckley's 
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          1    testimony even though it's directly related to the 
 
          2    conditions of the rider. 
 
          3    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
          4          Q.  Well, how do you know that  Witness 
 
          5    Buckley didn't consider the purporte d benefits of the 
 
          6    headquarters remaining in Akron, but  just didn't 
 
          7    believe they should be compensated t hrough the DMR 
 
          8    Rider? 
 
          9          A.  I can't speculate on what he considered, 
 
         10    but it is not included or referenced  anywhere in his 
 
         11    testimony. 
 
         12          Q.  Okay.  So it's entirely po ssible that 
 
         13    Witness Buckley did consider purport ed benefits of 
 
         14    keeping the headquarters in Akron, b ut nonetheless 
 
         15    concluded that FirstEnergy's custome rs shouldn't pay 
 
         16    through the DMR Rider for those bene fits, right? 
 
         17              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Calls for 
 
         18    speculation.  Go ahead. 
 
         19              THE WITNESS:  I don't know  what he 
 
         20    considered, but I know it is not sta ted in the 
 
         21    testimony. 
 
         22    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         23          Q.  Well, if you turn to Page 2 of your 
 
         24    direct testimony, lines 3 through 4 -- let me know 
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          1    when you're there. 
 
          2          A.  Yes. 
 
          3          Q.  You say that Staff Witness  Buckley 
 
          4    failed to address the economic and r evenue impacts of 
 
          5    the HQ, correct? 
 
          6          A.  That's what it says. 
 
          7          Q.  So you can't accurately sa y that Staff 
 
          8    Witness Buckley failed to address, b ecause he may 
 
          9    have addressed it? 
 
         10              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   The prior 
 
         11    question was consider, and this ques tion is address, 
 
         12    so you changed the terms.  But objec tion.  If you can 
 
         13    answer, go ahead. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  He failed to  address them 
 
         15    in the testimony. 
 
         16    By Mr. William: 
 
         17          Q.  So when you use addressed there, what 
 
         18    you're taking about is he failed to write about it in 
 
         19    his written testimony? 
 
         20          A.  That is what I mean, yes. 
 
         21          Q.  Okay.  What's your -- what  hourly rate 
 
         22    are you charging FirstEnergy for you r testimony in 
 
         23    this rehearing? 
 
         24              MR. ALEXANDER:  Let's -- I 'm going to 
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          1    object.  Is that confidential busine ss information? 
 
          2              THE WITNESS:  Yes, it is. 
 
          3              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay. 
 
          4              MR. MICHAEL:  Based on wha t? 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  Do you hav e any other 
 
          6    confidential information? 
 
          7              MR. MICHAEL:  Well, I can' t say for sure 
 
          8    at this point, but you guys might sa y it is. 
 
          9              MR. ALEXANDER:  Ms. Ghilon i, do you have 
 
         10    plan on having any confidential ques tions? 
 
         11              MS. WALTER:  No, I do not.  
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  Well, let' s mark this as 
 
         13    confidential transcript, just this o ne question. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  I don't know  the exact 
 
         15    rate without checking. 
 
         16              MR. MICHAEL:  And just for  the record, 
 
         17    OCC doesn't concede that that's conf idential. 
 
         18              MR. ALEXANDER:  Well, that  does not need 
 
         19    to be confidential, she didn't know without checking. 
 
         20    That's fine. 
 
         21    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         22          Q.  You said that with your ec onomic impact 
 
         23    study you didn't consider costs.  Ho w can -- how can 
 
         24    the economic impact study accurately  reflect what the 
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          1    purported economic impact is if you don't consider 
 
          2    the cost necessary to get to the pur ported economic 
 
          3    impact? 
 
          4          A.  I need to clarify that the re is a 
 
          5    difference between a cost benefit an alysis and an 
 
          6    economic impact analysis. 
 
          7              An economic impact analysi s translates 
 
          8    expenditures, in this case, by a com pany into jobs, 
 
          9    income, and output at the Company, a t vendors, and at 
 
         10    places where employees shop.  That i s the standard 
 
         11    methodology and scope for an economi c impact 
 
         12    analysis. 
 
         13              The cost benefit analysis considers the 
 
         14    cost associated with using a resourc e, or in this 
 
         15    case the cost of a rider, versus the  benefits 
 
         16    received by all parties that may ben efit from that. 
 
         17    And that's a different type of analy sis than what I 
 
         18    did. 
 
         19          Q.  Okay.  So the analysis tha t you did acts 
 
         20    as if there's no cost to consumers f or keeping the 
 
         21    headquarters in Akron? 
 
         22              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
         23              THE WITNESS:  It's not tha t it acts as 
 
         24    if there is no cost, it's simply not  comparing costs 
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          1    and benefits, it's looking at how ex penditures 
 
          2    support jobs and income in related i ndustries. 
 
          3    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
          4          Q.  So is it possible that the  cost of 
 
          5    keeping the headquarters in Akron co uld exceed the 
 
          6    purported economic benefits that you  found in your 
 
          7    testimony? 
 
          8          A.  I did not do a cost benefi t analysis, so 
 
          9    I could not comment on the cost of k eeping the 
 
         10    headquarters in Akron. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  But could you comme nt on the 
 
         12    degree to which those costs could ex ceed the 
 
         13    purported economic benefits that you  model? 
 
         14          A.  No, I did not do that anal ysis. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  I'm going to try it  one more 
 
         16    time. 
 
         17              Can you comment the degree  to which it's 
 
         18    possible that the cost for keeping t he headquarters 
 
         19    in Akron exceeds the economic benefi ts? 
 
         20              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         21    answered. 
 
         22              THE WITNESS:  Without havi ng done the 
 
         23    analysis, I could not comment on tha t. 
 
         24    By Ms. Petrucci: 
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          1          Q.  And you can't even comment  if it's 
 
          2    possible? 
 
          3              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
          4    answered. 
 
          5              THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
          6    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          7          Q.  If we could, Ms. Murley, p lease turn to 
 
          8    your rebuttal rehearing testimony on  Page 2, lines 9 
 
          9    through 10.  Let me know when you're  there, please. 
 
         10          A.  Yes. 
 
         11          Q.  How do you know that the S hared Service 
 
         12    employees would be relocated? 
 
         13          A.  Because they make up the h eadquarters 
 
         14    functions, they are the headquarters ' employees. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  So the headquarters  could be 
 
         16    relocated to Columbus, Ohio, correct ? 
 
         17          A.  I don't know. 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  So if you don't kno w where it 
 
         19    could be moved, then it's possible t hat the 
 
         20    headquarters would be -- could be mo ved within Ohio, 
 
         21    and therefore the purported economic  benefits would 
 
         22    stay in Ohio, correct? 
 
         23          A.  If the headquarters reloca ted within 
 
         24    Ohio, the impacts would stay in Ohio . 
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          1          Q.  If you turn to Page 3 of y our testimony, 
 
          2    please, Ms. Murley, lines 9 through 10, and let me 
 
          3    know when you're there. 
 
          4          A.  Yes. 
 
          5          Q.  First off, I was wondering , who is the 
 
          6    "they" you refer to in Line 10? 
 
          7          A.  Shared Services. 
 
          8          Q.  And the Company to which y ou are 
 
          9    referring there? 
 
         10          A.  FirstEnergy Corporation an d it's wholly 
 
         11    owned subsidiary, FirstEnergy Servic e Company. 
 
         12          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  The Sha red Service 
 
         13    employees provide services to all of  FirstEnergy's 
 
         14    operating companies, correct? 
 
         15          A.  Yes, that is my understand ing. 
 
         16          Q.  Whether those operating co mpanies are in 
 
         17    Ohio or some other state, correct? 
 
         18          A.  I don't know whether the F irstEnergy 
 
         19    Shared Services employees in Ohio pr ovide Shared 
 
         20    Services to operating companies outs ide of Ohio.  I 
 
         21    do know that there are additional Sh ared Service 
 
         22    employees in other states. 
 
         23          Q.  In your analysis did you d o anything to 
 
         24    segregate the work Shared Services e mployees provide 
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          1    to FirstEnergy's Ohio operations ver sus FirstEnergy's 
 
          2    operations outside of Ohio? 
 
          3          A.  I am looking at the impact s that they 
 
          4    create in Ohio based on the definiti on of the 
 
          5    multipliers, looking at what kind of  vendor purchases 
 
          6    they could make in Ohio.  I know tha t they are living 
 
          7    in Ohio, so local employee spending is most likely in 
 
          8    Ohio. 
 
          9          Q.  Okay.  But some of the val ue of those 
 
         10    Shared Services employees may be val ue created by 
 
         11    services provided to operating compa nies outside of 
 
         12    the State of Ohio, correct? 
 
         13          A.  I don't know. 
 
         14          Q.  If in fact that were the c ase, do you 
 
         15    think it would be appropriate for Oh io consumers to 
 
         16    pay for that value that the Shared S ervices employees 
 
         17    are providing to operating companies  outside the 
 
         18    State? 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Assumes 
 
         20    facts. 
 
         21              THE WITNESS:  I don't know . 
 
         22    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Let's stick with th e Ohio 
 
         24    operating companies and the Shared S ervice employees 
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          1    that are providing services to the O hio operating 
 
          2    companies, okay? 
 
          3          A.  Okay. 
 
          4          Q.  Are the costs of those ser vices recouped 
 
          5    through FirstEnergy utility's base r ates? 
 
          6          A.  I don't know. 
 
          7          Q.  If they were recouped thro ugh 
 
          8    FirstEnergy's base rates, do you thi nk Ohio's 
 
          9    consumers should compensate for thos e services again 
 
         10    by including the value of those serv ices in the DMR 
 
         11    Rider? 
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Assumes 
 
         13    facts. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  I'm not offe ring an 
 
         15    opinion on that. 
 
         16    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         17          Q.  Okay.  I understand that.  But let me 
 
         18    walk you through a hypothetical, if I can. 
 
         19              Assume for the purpose of my question, 
 
         20    No. 1, that the cost of the Shared S ervice employees 
 
         21    providing services to the Ohio opera ting companies, 
 
         22    the cost of those services are recou ped through 
 
         23    FirstEnergy's base rates, okay? 
 
         24          A.  Okay. 
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          1          Q.  Number one.  If that's the  case, would 
 
          2    you think it's appropriate that Firs tEnergy should 
 
          3    recover those costs through the DMR Rider based on 
 
          4    the analysis that you performed? 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Assumes 
 
          6    facts, beyond the scope of her testi mony, and I think 
 
          7    it confuses an economic impact analy sis which 
 
          8    measures the economic impact of the headquarters, 
 
          9    with cost recovery for Shared Servic e employees 
 
         10    through distribution rates.  Those a re wholly 
 
         11    separate concepts.  So those are my objections.  Go 
 
         12    ahead. 
 
         13              THE WITNESS:  I really can 't offer an 
 
         14    opinion about that. 
 
         15    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         16          Q.  Why not? 
 
         17          A.  I'm not familiar with exac tly the way 
 
         18    that Shared Service costs are includ ed or not 
 
         19    included in rates. 
 
         20          Q.  Okay.  So let's focus on t he $568 
 
         21    million figure for a moment, if we c ould. 
 
         22              So your testimony is that if the 
 
         23    headquarters leaves Akron there will  be a hit to the 
 
         24    Ohio economy of $568 million, roughl y, in lost 
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          1    economic benefits, correct? 
 
          2          A.  Just to clarify, if the he adquarters not 
 
          3    only leaves Akron, but leaves Ohio, that there would 
 
          4    be a reduction in economic activity of $568 million. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  And if the $568 mil lion figure 
 
          6    were to be included in the DMR for r ecovery from 
 
          7    FirstEnergy's customers, then the ec onomic impact 
 
          8    would be a wash versus whether or no t they left Ohio 
 
          9    or whether or not Ohio's consumers h ad to pay the 568 
 
         10    million, correct? 
 
         11              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that 
 
         12    reread, please? 
 
         13              (Question read back.) 
 
         14              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection to form.  Go 
 
         15    ahead. 
 
         16              THE WITNESS:  Could you re state the 
 
         17    question? 
 
         18    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         19          Q.  Certainly.  Let's start fi rst with if 
 
         20    FirstEnergy's headquarters leaves Oh io there would be 
 
         21    a 568 million economic loss accordin g to your 
 
         22    analysis, correct? 
 
         23          A.  Yes. 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  Now, assume for the  purposes of 
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          1    the question I'm going to ask you th at FirstEnergy 
 
          2    would attempt to recover the $568 mi llion by charging 
 
          3    customers through the DMR Rider.  Ok ay? 
 
          4          A.  Okay. 
 
          5          Q.  Now, my question is, from a net economic 
 
          6    benefit perspective, if FirstEnergy were to leave and 
 
          7    take that 568 million with them, or if they tried to 
 
          8    charge customers the 568 million, th e net effect from 
 
          9    an economic benefit perspective woul d be zero, 
 
         10    correct? 
 
         11          A.  I didn't do a cost benefit  analysis, and 
 
         12    I think it depends on who we're talk ing about. 
 
         13              If you're a vendor that ju st lost your 
 
         14    business because FirstEnergy is no l onger purchasing 
 
         15    from you, and you may or may not be a customer of 
 
         16    FirstEnergy, then there's an impact to you that's 
 
         17    unrelated to Rider DMR. 
 
         18              The scope of what I'm look ing at in 
 
         19    economic impact is different than wh at you're -- it's 
 
         20    not limited to charges to customers.  
 
         21          Q.  Okay.  So you ignore charg es to 
 
         22    customers in your analysis? 
 
         23          A.  It's not -- it's not the s ubject of an 
 
         24    economic impact analysis of the head quarters.  The 



 
 
                                                         67 
 
 
          1    headquarters is providing Shared Ser vices, and that's 
 
          2    what I'm valuing. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  But, Ms. Murley, is n't it true 
 
          4    that whether or not the 568 million is taken out of 
 
          5    the economy because the headquarters  moves or because 
 
          6    FirstEnergy charges all of its custo mers 568 million 
 
          7    through the DMR Rider, the economic impact is the 
 
          8    very same, you're taking $568 millio n out of the Ohio 
 
          9    economy, correct? 
 
         10              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Fails to 
 
         11    address the other benefits of the DM R.  Go ahead. 
 
         12              THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure  I understand 
 
         13    the question. 
 
         14    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  Well, as I read you r economic 
 
         16    impact study, what you're saying is that if 
 
         17    FirstEnergy's headquarters moves, th at's going to 
 
         18    take $568 million out of the Ohio ec onomy, correct? 
 
         19          A.  Yes, if they were to move.  
 
         20          Q.  Okay.  Now, let's assume t hey stay, but 
 
         21    the price for them staying is collec ting $568 million 
 
         22    from their customers, okay?  In eith er case you're 
 
         23    still taking $568 million out of the  Ohio economy, 
 
         24    correct? 



 
 
                                                         68 
 
 
          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Fails to 
 
          2    address the other benefits of the DM R.  Go ahead. 
 
          3              THE WITNESS:  I believe th at's an apples 
 
          4    and oranges comparison. 
 
          5    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          6          Q.  Okay.  Tell me why. 
 
          7          A.  Because I am looking at th e benefits to 
 
          8    FirstEnergy and all these related bu sinesses that are 
 
          9    their vendors and that sell goods an d services to 
 
         10    their employees, which are all part of the Ohio 
 
         11    economy. 
 
         12              And you're asking me how t hat compares 
 
         13    to the cost to customers of that eco nomic impact.  It 
 
         14    is, in my mind, an apples and orange s -- it's not 
 
         15    correlated. 
 
         16          Q.  Okay.  So there's a differ ence in your 
 
         17    mind, Ms. Murley, then, between taki ng $568 million 
 
         18    out of the economy were the headquar ters to move, 
 
         19    versus taking $568 million out of th e economy because 
 
         20    FirstEnergy increased its rates by t hat amount; is 
 
         21    that correct? 
 
         22          A.  Yes. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  If you could please  turn to Page 
 
         24    4 of your testimony, Ms. Murley, lin es 3 through 5. 
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          1          A.  Yes. 
 
          2          Q.  Why is it not possible to isolate the 
 
          3    taxes exclusively paid by the headqu arters? 
 
          4          A.  Because the services and c ost of the 
 
          5    services they provide are shared. 
 
          6          Q.  Between whom? 
 
          7          A.  The operating companies th at they 
 
          8    provide services to. 
 
          9          Q.  Okay.  Why does that preve nt you from 
 
         10    isolating the taxes paid by the head quarters?  Walk 
 
         11    me through that.  I don't understand . 
 
         12          A.  So I know the amount of in come taxes, 
 
         13    for example, or I could know the amo unt of income 
 
         14    taxes paid by FirstEnergy in Ohio. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay. 
 
         16          A.  But how much of that is du e to the 
 
         17    headquarters versus other subsidiari es of FirstEnergy 
 
         18    Corporation in Ohio is not possible to delineate. 
 
         19          Q.  Did you analyze -- I mean,  are there 
 
         20    accounting categories or records tha t you could 
 
         21    have -- you could look to where they  would segregate 
 
         22    the taxes that are associated with t his given line of 
 
         23    work or that given line of work, or this business or 
 
         24    that business? 
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          1          A.  I did not review financial  records, but 
 
          2    it is my understanding based on the information I was 
 
          3    provided by FirstEnergy Service Comp any that it was 
 
          4    not possible to delineate that. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  And is that also be cause some of 
 
          6    the services are performed in states  other than Ohio? 
 
          7          A.  I do not believe that is t he issue. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  If you'd please tur n to Page 5, 
 
          9    Ms. Murley, of your testimony, lines  14 through 16, 
 
         10    and let me know when you're there. 
 
         11          A.  Yes. 
 
         12          Q.  Do you assume in making th at assertion 
 
         13    that all of the employees are going to leave the 
 
         14    State of Ohio? 
 
         15          A.  Are you referring to the e vent that the 
 
         16    headquarters left Ohio? 
 
         17          Q.  Correct. 
 
         18          A.  I'm not assuming that the employees will 
 
         19    necessarily leave Ohio, I'm assuming  that they will 
 
         20    no longer be employed by FirstEnergy  in Ohio.  They 
 
         21    may migrate with the headquarters, t hey may get a 
 
         22    different job. 
 
         23          Q.  So if they were to get a d ifferent job, 
 
         24    then there may be no difference of t he tax revenue 
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          1    that the State of Ohio receives, cor rect? 
 
          2          A.  Overall that is not true, because if 
 
          3    they were to get a different job, th at job was 
 
          4    created independent of what happened  with 
 
          5    FirstEnergy, it's at some other comp any, let's say. 
 
          6              That job could have been f illed by 
 
          7    someone from outside of Ohio, an add itional person 
 
          8    coming in and becoming employed in O hio, who would 
 
          9    then also begin generating taxes in Ohio. 
 
         10              So there is a net loss of jobs, and so 
 
         11    it's -- even though that person may become reemployed 
 
         12    by some other company, there is a ne t loss of jobs, 
 
         13    and so we're not looking at the same  amount of 
 
         14    revenue just because they got anothe r job. 
 
         15          Q.  So if Jane Smith FirstEner gy employee 
 
         16    were to leave FirstEnergy because it  moves its 
 
         17    headquarters to Birmingham, Alabama,  just say, but 
 
         18    yet kept -- decided she wanted to st ay in Akron, Ohio 
 
         19    and the job was equally or more in c ompensation, 
 
         20    you're saying that there would not b e -- or that 
 
         21    there still would be a net reduction  in total taxes 
 
         22    collected by the State of Ohio under  those 
 
         23    circumstances? 
 
         24          A.  Yes, because if Jane had s tayed with 
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          1    FirstEnergy in the event that the he adquarters did 
 
          2    not move, so she kept her FirstEnerg y job, and some 
 
          3    other person, let's just say from ou tside Ohio, came 
 
          4    in and took that other job that Jane  could have taken 
 
          5    if the headquarters left, then they would also begin 
 
          6    paying taxes in Ohio. 
 
          7              So you'd have Jane and the  second person 
 
          8    paying taxes, which would be more ta xes than if Jane 
 
          9    left her current job and took a diff erent job. 
 
         10          Q.  If you would please turn t o the first 
 
         11    page of text in your attachment to y our testimony, 
 
         12    please, and let me know when you're there. 
 
         13              MR. ALEXANDER:  So you're referring to 
 
         14    S-MR-1's first page. 
 
         15              MR. MICHAEL:  Yes. 
 
         16              THE WITNESS:  Yes, I am th ere. 
 
         17    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         18          Q.  If you look at the first n ote, the last 
 
         19    sentence says, "This report may be u sed only for the 
 
         20    purposes for which it was intended,"  correct? 
 
         21          A.  Yes.  That's what it says.  
 
         22          Q.  And is the purpose for whi ch the report 
 
         23    is intended the last sentence in the  first paragraph 
 
         24    under purpose of the study, which re ads, "This 
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          1    analysis is intended to provide a fr amework for 
 
          2    understanding the economic revenue a nd other 
 
          3    community impacts that the headquart ers creates in 
 
          4    Ohio"? 
 
          5          A.  Yes. 
 
          6          Q.  Okay.  And if FirstEnergy were using 
 
          7    your report to argue that its custom ers should pay 
 
          8    for the economic benefit found in yo ur report, that 
 
          9    would be outside the scope of the pu rpose of your 
 
         10    report, correct? 
 
         11              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Go ahead. 
 
         12              THE WITNESS:  I'm not offe ring an 
 
         13    opinion on whether they should use i t to argue that, 
 
         14    I'm stating what I believe the benef it of the 
 
         15    headquarters remaining in Ohio would  be. 
 
         16    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         17          Q.  Okay.  But you're saying m ore than that, 
 
         18    aren't you, Ms. Murley?  You're sayi ng that the 
 
         19    report may be used only for the purp ose for which it 
 
         20    was intended, and we identified the purpose for which 
 
         21    it was intended as providing a frame work for 
 
         22    understanding the economic revenue a nd other 
 
         23    community impacts that the headquart ers creates in 
 
         24    Ohio? 
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          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   The witness 
 
          2    explained very clearly the report wa s intended to 
 
          3    define the economic impact of the he adquarters.  That 
 
          4    is what is intended in the last sent ence there, so 
 
          5    with that objection on the record, g o ahead. 
 
          6              THE WITNESS:  Could you re peat your 
 
          7    question? 
 
          8    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          9          Q.  Certainly.  My question is  if 
 
         10    FirstEnergy were using your report t o justify 
 
         11    charging customers up to $568 millio n via the DMR 
 
         12    Rider, would that use of your report  be beyond the 
 
         13    scope of the stated purpose on Page 1 of your 
 
         14    economic and revenue impacts of Firs tEnergy corporate 
 
         15    headquarters on the State of Ohio? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Misstates 
 
         17    facts.  Go ahead. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  I don't know  that the last 
 
         19    sentence in the purpose of the study , first 
 
         20    paragraph, limits the use in that pa rticular way. 
 
         21    It's not that specific. 
 
         22    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         23          Q.  If you'd please turn to th e second page 
 
         24    of that document, Ms. Murley. 
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          1          A.  Yes. 
 
          2          Q.  I want to direct your atte ntion to the 
 
          3    bottom of the page, the paragraph be ginning, "Supply 
 
          4    chain impacts..." 
 
          5          A.  Yes. 
 
          6          Q.  There's a statement there,  "Locally 
 
          7    headquartered companies are more lik ely to purchase 
 
          8    from local vendors."  Do you see tha t? 
 
          9          A.  Yes. 
 
         10          Q.  Did you do anything to tes t that 
 
         11    assertion as it relates to FirstEner gy's headquarters 
 
         12    in Akron? 
 
         13          A.  Not specific to FirstEnerg y's 
 
         14    headquarters in Akron.  There is lit erature about the 
 
         15    likelihood of headquarters to purcha se from local 
 
         16    vendors. 
 
         17          Q.  If you'd please turn to Pa ge 3, 
 
         18    Ms. Murley.  And specifically the Ot her Community 
 
         19    Impacts section. 
 
         20          A.  Yes. 
 
         21          Q.  I want to start with the p aragraph 
 
         22    community support for purpose of my question.  It's 
 
         23    not possible to isolate the share of  community 
 
         24    support that are directly related to  the corporate 
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          1    headquarters, correct? 
 
          2          A.  Yes. 
 
          3          Q.  And it's not possible to i solate the 
 
          4    share of community involvement that are directly 
 
          5    related to the corporate headquarter s, correct? 
 
          6          A.  Correct. 
 
          7          Q.  And it's not possible to i solate the 
 
          8    share of demand for local office spa ce that are 
 
          9    directly related to the corporate he adquarters, 
 
         10    correct? 
 
         11          A.  The amount of office space  that's 
 
         12    specifically occupied by Shared Serv ice employees is 
 
         13    what is being referenced in that par ticular bullet. 
 
         14          Q.  Okay.  And it's not possib le to isolate 
 
         15    the share of community impacts for s ponsorships that 
 
         16    are directly related to the corporat e headquarters, 
 
         17    correct? 
 
         18          A.  Correct. 
 
         19          Q.  And it's not possible to i solate the 
 
         20    share of community impacts that are -- let me start 
 
         21    over, please. 
 
         22              It's not possible to isola te the share 
 
         23    of tuition reimbursement that are di rectly related to 
 
         24    the corporate headquarters, correct?  
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          1          A.  Correct. 
 
          2          Q.  If you'd please turn to Pa ge 5 of that 
 
          3    document, Ms. Murley. 
 
          4          A.  Yes. 
 
          5          Q.  The very last paragraph on  that page 
 
          6    regarding the 110.2 million, do you see that 
 
          7    sentence? 
 
          8          A.  Yes. 
 
          9          Q.  What are IMPLAN assumption s regarding 
 
         10    the Ohio based vendors? 
 
         11          A.  So in IMPLAN, when you sel ect a 
 
         12    particular set of multipliers to use , you need to 
 
         13    select multipliers for a specific in dustry type and 
 
         14    also a specific geography.  And the important -- in 
 
         15    which case I chose Ohio. 
 
         16              And the importance of choo sing a 
 
         17    specific geography is that the multi pliers contain 
 
         18    information about the economic base of that 
 
         19    geography, and assumptions about how  much of the 
 
         20    supplier purchasing and local employ ee spending would 
 
         21    occur specifically within that geogr aphy. 
 
         22              And so in that way I -- my  model limited 
 
         23    this to vendor purchases in Ohio bas ed on the IMPLAN 
 
         24    assumptions. 
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          1          Q.  What are the data sources that those 
 
          2    IMPLAN assumptions draw from? 
 
          3          A.  IMPLAN uses a variety of i ndustry survey 
 
          4    data from the census from the Bureau  of Economic 
 
          5    Analysis, from the Bureau of Labor S tatistics about 
 
          6    interrelationships between businesse s and information 
 
          7    about wages and purchases. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  Have you ever analy zed whether or 
 
          9    not there's a variance between the I MPLAN assumptions 
 
         10    and actual results? 
 
         11          A.  No, that would be very dif ficult because 
 
         12    it not only includes companies from whom FirstEnergy 
 
         13    directly purchases goods and service s, but also 
 
         14    suppliers to those vendors, so there  are iterative 
 
         15    effects, and so it would be very dif ficult to confirm 
 
         16    not only FirstEnergy Ohio's purchase , but also all of 
 
         17    the Ohio purchases by all of their s uppliers. 
 
         18          Q.  I want to ask you similar questions 
 
         19    regarding the next sentence if I can , Ms. Murley. 
 
         20    The supply chain spending, do you se e that sentence? 
 
         21          A.  Yes. 
 
         22          Q.  Okay.  You also relied on the IMPLAN 
 
         23    assumptions in arriving at the 756 a dditional jobs 
 
         24    and 39.8 million in payroll, correct ? 
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          1          A.  Yes, I did. 
 
          2          Q.  Okay.  And what are those IMPLAN 
 
          3    assumptions? 
 
          4          A.  So I used the indirect mul tipliers for 
 
          5    the management of companies, which i s what IMPLAN 
 
          6    calls headquarters, in Ohio, to -- i n this case for 
 
          7    employment, the indirect employment multiplier, and 
 
          8    for personal income, the indirect pe rsonal income 
 
          9    multiplier, to make those estimates of employment and 
 
         10    income indirect related to vendor pu rchases. 
 
         11          Q.  And what are the data sour ces for those 
 
         12    IMPLAN assumptions? 
 
         13          A.  I believe I just answered that, but -- 
 
         14          Q.  Are they the same? 
 
         15          A.  Yes. 
 
         16          Q.  Okay.  Have you ever analy zed the 
 
         17    variance between the assumptions ass ociated with the 
 
         18    supply chain spending and the actual  outcomes? 
 
         19          A.  As I mentioned, that would  be difficult 
 
         20    if not impossible to do because it's  not only the 
 
         21    companies from whom in this case Fir stEnergy buys 
 
         22    goods and services, it's also the co mpanies from whom 
 
         23    those suppliers buy goods and servic es. 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  IMPLAN is a widely used economic 
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          1    impact tool according to your testim ony, correct? 
 
          2          A.  Yes, sir. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  Have you ever analy zed the degree 
 
          4    to which IMPLAN's projections vary w ith actual 
 
          5    results of whatever it is IMPLAN is trying to 
 
          6    project? 
 
          7          A.  IMPLAN doesn't specificall y make 
 
          8    projections, they provide a tool for  economists to 
 
          9    use when estimating economic impacts . 
 
         10          Q.  Okay.  Have you ever analy zed the degree 
 
         11    to which the estimated economic impa cts based on 
 
         12    IMPLAN varies with actual results? 
 
         13          A.  No, because it includes a myriad of 
 
         14    related industries, suppliers to sup pliers, suppliers 
 
         15    to the places where employees shop, all of the 
 
         16    employees spending by not only the e mployees of the 
 
         17    company that you're looking at, but also the 
 
         18    suppliers of the businesses. 
 
         19              It would be difficult, if not 
 
         20    impossible, to isolate the impacts o f those related 
 
         21    businesses specifically from that ta rget company, 
 
         22    because obviously they have other cu stomers as well. 
 
         23          Q.  So I'm asking you the ques tion, I don't 
 
         24    know you answered this, there's no e conomic 
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          1    literature that analyzes how accurat e IMPLAN economic 
 
          2    impact results are when compared wit h actual results? 
 
          3          A.  I haven't done a literatur e search 
 
          4    specifically on that topic, but I un derstand what 
 
          5    would be involved in making that ver ification, and 
 
          6    it's reasonable to assume that that would be 
 
          7    difficult, if not impossible. 
 
          8          Q.  If I could draw your atten tion, 
 
          9    Ms. Murley, to the first page of you r rebuttal 
 
         10    hearing testimony, lines 14 through 16.  Let me know 
 
         11    when you're there, please. 
 
         12          A.  Yes. 
 
         13          Q.  Could you please identify which Ohio 
 
         14    utilities you have constructed an ec onomic or fiscal 
 
         15    impact model for? 
 
         16          A.  Within Ohio, the only -- 
 
         17              MR. ALEXANDER:  Hold on.  Could I have 
 
         18    that question reread, please? 
 
         19              (Question read back.) 
 
         20              THE WITNESS:  FirstEnergy is my only 
 
         21    utility client in Ohio.  I have othe r clients in Ohio 
 
         22    that are not utilities. 
 
         23    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  And when you say in  that portion 
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          1    of your testimony, Ms. Murley, that you have 
 
          2    constructed a large number of econom ic and fiscal 
 
          3    impact models, describe for me what you mean by that. 
 
          4          A.  So those are two different  types of 
 
          5    models.  So an economic impact model  is -- this is an 
 
          6    analysis based on an economic impact  model. 
 
          7              I also construct software tools that 
 
          8    economic development organizations c an use in 
 
          9    analyzing new and expanding companie s within their 
 
         10    area.  And that would be different f rom a fiscal 
 
         11    impact model which looks at revenues  and expenditures 
 
         12    to a particular jurisdiction; for ex ample, a city. 
 
         13              So we might analyze the fi scal impact of 
 
         14    a new or expanding company in a city , and what kind 
 
         15    of revenues they would generate for that city, and 
 
         16    what kind of expenditures they would  create in terms 
 
         17    of the cost of public safety or publ ic works, or 
 
         18    those kinds of services that are pro vided by 
 
         19    municipalities. 
 
         20          Q.  Okay.  Now, there's a lot of different 
 
         21    FirstEnergy related entities that we  have talked 
 
         22    about through the course of this cas e, and I just 
 
         23    want to get specific with you if I c an, Ms. Murley. 
 
         24              Did you construct -- have you 
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          1    constructed an economic model or fis cal impact model 
 
          2    for FirstEnergy utilities throughout  the course of 
 
          3    your representation? 
 
          4              MR. ALEXANDER:  Mr. Michae l, do you mean 
 
          5    the Companies as Mr. Soules defined it to mean? 
 
          6              MR. MICHAEL:  Yes, I do. 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay. 
 
          8              THE WITNESS:  The definiti on of the 
 
          9    Companies being the operating Compan ies, I have not 
 
         10    constructed economic or fiscal impac t models for the 
 
         11    operating companies. 
 
         12    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         13          Q.  Okay.  Have you constructe d economic or 
 
         14    fiscal impact models for FirstEnergy  Services 
 
         15    Corporation? 
 
         16          A.  FirstEnergy Service Compan y? 
 
         17              MR. MICHAEL:  Help me, Tre vor.  The 
 
         18    Company? 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  Yes. 
 
         20              THE WITNESS:  I have const ructed other 
 
         21    models and done reports for FirstEne rgy Service 
 
         22    Company. 
 
         23    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  Have you done so fo r FirstEnergy 
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          1    Solutions? 
 
          2          A.  No. 
 
          3          Q.  Tell me about the models y ou did for 
 
          4    FirstEnergy Service Company, please.  
 
          5          A.  I have constructed impact models that 
 
          6    they can use in Ohio and in all of t he other states 
 
          7    where FirstEnergy operates; Pennsylv ania, West 
 
          8    Virginia, Maryland, New Jersey, I th ink that's -- I 
 
          9    think that's all, and updated them. 
 
         10              And so these models allow an economic 
 
         11    development person to put in informa tion about the 
 
         12    number of jobs and payroll at a part icular company, 
 
         13    typically a company that might be ne w to the area or 
 
         14    a company that might be expanding in  their area, and 
 
         15    estimate what the economic and reven ue impacts would 
 
         16    be associated with that expansion or  attraction of a 
 
         17    company. 
 
         18          Q.  Are you able to say, Ms. M urley, 
 
         19    approximately how many of those repo rts you have done 
 
         20    for FirstEnergy Service Company? 
 
         21          A.  So just to clarify, those aren't 
 
         22    reports. 
 
         23          Q.  Or models. 
 
         24          A.  I build up software for th em and they 
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          1    may run it.  I don't know how often they run it or 
 
          2    when they run it.  They don't call m e every time they 
 
          3    run it. 
 
          4          Q.  Okay. 
 
          5          A.  I have done those models i n each of the 
 
          6    states in Ohio, West Virginia, Penns ylvania, New 
 
          7    Jersey.  And I have updated each of those models at 
 
          8    least once, in some cases more than once.  This dates 
 
          9    back more than ten years -- 
 
         10          Q.  Okay. 
 
         11          A.  -- when I originally creat ed the very 
 
         12    first model. 
 
         13          Q.  In this case you actually ran the model 
 
         14    as distinct from what you just descr ibed where you 
 
         15    would create software and FirstEnerg y Services 
 
         16    Company would run the model, correct ? 
 
         17          A.  By "this case" you're refe rring to the 
 
         18    headquarters impact? 
 
         19          Q.  Yes, ma'am. 
 
         20          A.  Yes.  I didn't run the mod el that I 
 
         21    created for them, I created a model specifically for 
 
         22    this particular analysis. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Have you ever run - - setting 
 
         24    aside that example, have you ever cr eated and run the 
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          1    model for FirstEnergy Services Compa ny before? 
 
          2          A.  The model that I built for  them, are you 
 
          3    asking? 
 
          4          Q.  Yeah.  Let me back up a se cond.  You 
 
          5    created and ran the model for the he adquarters case 
 
          6    that we're here talking about, right ? 
 
          7          A.  I created a model using IM PLAN.  I 
 
          8    didn't create special software.  I c reated a model 
 
          9    using IMPLAN for this particular pur pose. 
 
         10          Q.  Okay.  And my question is:   Have you 
 
         11    ever done anything similar in the pa st for 
 
         12    FirstEnergy Services Company? 
 
         13          A.  I have done reports on -- not on the 
 
         14    headquarters, but I have done report s where I created 
 
         15    my own model and wrote a report abou t my results, in 
 
         16    addition to building them a model th at they could 
 
         17    use. 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  Do you bill FirstEn ergy Services 
 
         19    Company on a task-by-task basis, or are you on a 
 
         20    retainer with them? 
 
         21          A.  I'm not on a retainer, I b uild them on a 
 
         22    task-by-task basis. 
 
         23              MR. ALEXANDER:  Counsel, F irstEnergy 
 
         24    "Service" Company. 
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          1              MR. MICHAEL:  Did I put an  "s" on there? 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  Yes. 
 
          3    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
          4          Q.  All right.  And those enga gements, 
 
          5    Ms. Murley, do you charge FirstEnerg y the same amount 
 
          6    as you're charging them in connectio n with this 
 
          7    testimony you're providing them? 
 
          8          A.  No.  For each one of those  engagements I 
 
          9    would create a proposal with a cost estimate in 
 
         10    advance of doing the work, and I wou ld do the work 
 
         11    and I would bill them for that amoun t. 
 
         12          Q.  Okay.  Do you provide thos e cost 
 
         13    estimates in response to an RFP or, you know, tell me 
 
         14    how you'd get started providing thos e cost estimates? 
 
         15              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   We're 
 
         16    getting pretty for afield of her tes timony.  Go 
 
         17    ahead. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  I have not r esponded to 
 
         19    RFPs in the case of FirstEnergy.  I have -- they 
 
         20    asked me to prepare a cost estimate to do a 
 
         21    particular analysis, and I responded . 
 
         22    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Now, Ms. Murley, yo u have 
 
         24    presented several economic impact st udies in 
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          1    connection with this case, three at least, right? 
 
          2    You had your direct testimony, your supplemental 
 
          3    testimony, and now your rebuttal reh earing testimony, 
 
          4    correct? 
 
          5          A.  Yes. 
 
          6          Q.  Okay.  And amongst those y ou conducted 
 
          7    an economic impact analysis of the D avis-Besse and 
 
          8    the Sammis plant, correct? 
 
          9          A.  Yes, in my original testim ony. 
 
         10          Q.  And you relied upon the IM PLAN software 
 
         11    in conducting that analysis, correct ? 
 
         12          A.  Among other things, yes, I  did. 
 
         13          Q.  Okay.  And that use of IMP LAN produced 
 
         14    direct, indirect, and induced impact s associated with 
 
         15    those plans, correct? 
 
         16          A.  Yes. 
 
         17          Q.  And ultimately that analys is produced 
 
         18    estimate of revenue and economic imp acts of both 
 
         19    Davis-Besse and Sammis, correct? 
 
         20          A.  Yes.  To clarify, we're ta lking about 
 
         21    tax revenues. 
 
         22          Q.  Correct. 
 
         23              MR. MICHAEL:  I'm not goin g to mark 
 
         24    this, Trevor, unless you want me to,  but this is a 
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          1    copy of Ms. Murley's direct testimon y filed in this 
 
          2    case. 
 
          3              MR. ALEXANDER:  We don't n eed to mark 
 
          4    it, it's already in the record. 
 
          5              MR. MICHAEL:  A copy for y ou, 
 
          6    Ms. Murley.  Could I see your copy b ack real quick, 
 
          7    Trevor?  I think that might be -- ma y I see your copy 
 
          8    real quick, Ms. Murley?  Thank you. 
 
          9    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         10          Q.  All right.  And, Ms. Murle y, if you 
 
         11    would please turn to I think what wa s identified as 
 
         12    SM-1, Page 1, that was attached to t hat testimony? 
 
         13              MR. ALEXANDER:  Counsel, a t this point 
 
         14    I'm going to point out there's highl ighting on my 
 
         15    copy. 
 
         16              MR. MICHAEL:  That's what I was looking 
 
         17    for, but I didn't see it.  Switch wi th me. 
 
         18              MR. ALEXANDER:  And you're  going to tie 
 
         19    this back?  We're getting pretty for  afield of the 
 
         20    scope of testimony at this point. 
 
         21              MR. MICHAEL:  Well, what w e're aiming at 
 
         22    is the way that Ms. Murley ran the m odel, any 
 
         23    differences between the way she ran the model this 
 
         24    time and last time.  So I appreciate  the 
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          1    opportunity -- 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  I'll give you some 
 
          3    leeway. 
 
          4              MR. MICHAEL:  Thank you. 
 
          5    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          6          Q.  All right.  Ms. Murley, Pa ge 1, are you 
 
          7    there? 
 
          8          A.  Yes. 
 
          9          Q.  Actually, of the attachmen t to your 
 
         10    direct testimony. 
 
         11          A.  Yes. 
 
         12          Q.  Are you there with me?  An d you'll see 
 
         13    at the bottom of that page, it says,  "Estimates made 
 
         14    in this analysis are based on hypoth etical 
 
         15    assumptions, current tax policies, a nd the current 
 
         16    economic structure of the region," c orrect? 
 
         17          A.  I see that it says that. 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  And that statement would be 
 
         19    equally applicable to the analysis y ou did in 
 
         20    connection with the FirstEnergy head quarters, 
 
         21    correct? 
 
         22          A.  I relied on IMPLAN assumpt ions that are 
 
         23    not specific to FirstEnergy but are specific to -- in 
 
         24    the case of the headquarters, a head quarters 
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          1    operation, and current taxes and the  current economic 
 
          2    structure of the region. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  So that it's true, then, that the 
 
          4    analysis you did in connection with the headquarters 
 
          5    is based on hypothetical assumptions , current tax 
 
          6    policies, and a current economic str ucture of the 
 
          7    region, correct? 
 
          8          A.  Yes.  And by "hypothetical  assumptions", 
 
          9    I'm referring to the assumptions in the IMPLAN model. 
 
         10          Q.  Okay.  And those assumptio ns are 
 
         11    assumptions about spending patterns?  
 
         12          A.  Yes. 
 
         13          Q.  And those assumptions are assumptions 
 
         14    about the types of goods and service s that are 
 
         15    required by industries in the electr ic generation 
 
         16    sector, correct? 
 
         17          A.  Among other things, yes. 
 
         18          Q.  And those assumptions are about what 
 
         19    share of those purchases can be made  locally, 
 
         20    correct? 
 
         21          A.  Among other things, yes. 
 
         22          Q.  And also assumptions on wh at particular 
 
         23    goods and services that the headquar ters buys, 
 
         24    correct? 
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          1          A.  In the case of the headqua rters 
 
          2    multipliers, yes. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  And also hypothetic al assumptions 
 
          4    about the quantity of goods bought o n an aggregate 
 
          5    level by the FirstEnergy headquarter s in Akron, 
 
          6    correct? 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that 
 
          8    question reread, please. 
 
          9              MR. MICHAEL:  If it was un artful, I'll 
 
         10    rephrase it. 
 
         11              MR. ALEXANDER:  I think it  may have 
 
         12    been. 
 
         13    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         14          Q.  The analysis you did of th e FirstEnergy 
 
         15    headquarters is based on hypothetica l assumptions 
 
         16    about the quantities of goods bought  on an aggregate 
 
         17    level by the headquarters? 
 
         18          A.  Could you clarify what you  mean by "on 
 
         19    an aggregate level"? 
 
         20          Q.  Well, as opposed to any sp ecific 
 
         21    purchase, just the total purchases m ade by the 
 
         22    headquarters. 
 
         23          A.  So in the IMPLAN model the re are 
 
         24    specific assumptions about the amoun t of purchases 
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          1    from particular other industries, wh ich is slightly 
 
          2    different than the type of commodity . 
 
          3              So it's -- the aggregate a mount that I'm 
 
          4    showing is the sum of those purchase s that IMPLAN 
 
          5    assumes in specific industries. 
 
          6          Q.  And that assumption again -- I'm trying 
 
          7    to tie it to the use of the phrase " hypothetical 
 
          8    assumption". 
 
          9              Those numbers reflected by  IMPLAN that 
 
         10    you just described are based on hypo thetical 
 
         11    assumptions not actual aggregate pur chases by 
 
         12    FirstEnergy headquarters, correct? 
 
         13          A.  They are based on actual i ndustry data, 
 
         14    but not specifically the FirstEnergy  headquarters. 
 
         15          Q.  Are there any other hypoth etical 
 
         16    assumptions that relate to the estim ates in your 
 
         17    headquarters analysis? 
 
         18          A.  There are IMPLAN assumptio ns about the 
 
         19    amount of output per employee and th e amount of 
 
         20    personal income per employee, and a variety of 
 
         21    different industries that are includ ed in the vendor 
 
         22    industries and the industries from w hich employees 
 
         23    purchase. 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  Anything else? 
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          1          A.  IMPLAN is a very complex m odel and I 
 
          2    could not comprehensively state all of the 
 
          3    assumptions that are inherent in the  IMPLAN 
 
          4    multipliers. 
 
          5          Q.  Can you quantify how many assumptions 
 
          6    were in the IMPLAN model? 
 
          7          A.  No, I could not. 
 
          8          Q.  If I could draw your atten tion back to 
 
          9    the part of your first paper you did  in your direct 
 
         10    testimony, Footnote No. 1. 
 
         11          A.  Yes. 
 
         12          Q.  It states there, "Even if the 
 
         13    assumptions outlined in this report were to occur, 
 
         14    there will usually be differences be tween the 
 
         15    estimates and the actual results bec ause events and 
 
         16    circumstances frequently do not occu r as expected." 
 
         17    Did I read that correctly? 
 
         18          A.  That's what it says. 
 
         19          Q.  And would that statement b e equally 
 
         20    applicable to your HQ analysis? 
 
         21          A.  Yes. 
 
         22          Q.  Ms. Murley, are there any differences 
 
         23    between the approach you used on the  Davis-Besse and 
 
         24    Sammis economic impact study, and th e economic impact 



 
 
                                                         95 
 
 
          1    study you've presented for the headq uarters? 
 
          2          A.  I used multipliers for a d ifferent 
 
          3    industry.  And the Davis-Besse plant  did include a 
 
          4    nonrecurring construction project, b ut otherwise I 
 
          5    used the same standard methodology i n both cases. 
 
          6          Q.  Okay.  You said you used, I think, 
 
          7    different multipliers from a differe nt industry.  Is 
 
          8    that because in the first -- in the first analysis 
 
          9    you did you focus on generation, and  in this one you 
 
         10    focus on headquarters, or what is th e nature of that 
 
         11    difference? 
 
         12          A.  That is correct.  So there  are different 
 
         13    multipliers for utility generation, obviously 
 
         14    different supplier purchases, differ ent types of 
 
         15    employees.  And there are multiplier s for 
 
         16    headquarters operations, which I use  for the 
 
         17    headquarters analysis. 
 
         18          Q.  And are those multipliers for 
 
         19    headquarters that you use specific t o electric public 
 
         20    utilities, or is it headquarters irr espective of the 
 
         21    industry at issue? 
 
         22          A.  They are for headquarters irrespective 
 
         23    of the industry at issue.  But they are particularly 
 
         24    applicable here because we're able t o completely 
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          1    separate the headquarters operation from generation 
 
          2    distribution, and in some companies the headquarters 
 
          3    may be collocated with their product ion and it would 
 
          4    be much more difficult to make that distinction. 
 
          5          Q.  Ms. Murley, you have made a distinction 
 
          6    throughout the course of the deposit ion to a cost 
 
          7    benefit analysis and an economic imp act study.  And 
 
          8    my question is:  Why did you run an economic impact 
 
          9    analysis rather than do a cost benef it analysis? 
 
         10          A.  I wasn't asked to analyze the cost of 
 
         11    keeping the headquarters in Ohio, I was asked to look 
 
         12    at the economic impact specifically of the 
 
         13    headquarters. 
 
         14          Q.  But I mean, wouldn't it be  a more 
 
         15    accurate picture of keeping the head quarters in Ohio 
 
         16    to include and consider and analyze the costs 
 
         17    associated with keeping that headqua rters here; I 
 
         18    mean, just as an economist and a pur ported expert on 
 
         19    this subject matter? 
 
         20          A.  I wouldn't necessarily say  it would be 
 
         21    more accurate.  It is simply a diffe rent approach to 
 
         22    the analysis. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  But I mean, if you' re trying to 
 
         24    gauge what the headquarters being in  Akron means, it 
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          1    seems to me that you're looking only  at half of the 
 
          2    picture, and that's the benefits. 
 
          3              But in the study you've pr oduced you're 
 
          4    not looking at what it costs in orde r to get those 
 
          5    benefits, and therefore it's not pre senting the 
 
          6    Public Utilities Commission with a c omplete picture 
 
          7    of what it means to keep the headqua rters here. 
 
          8              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   There's no 
 
          9    question there.  There's no question  pending. 
 
         10              MR. MICHAEL:  Okay. 
 
         11    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         12          Q.  So my question is:  Isn't it true that 
 
         13    you're only providing the Commission  with half the 
 
         14    picture because you're not modeling the costs 
 
         15    associated with keeping the benefits  here? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Asked and 
 
         17    answered.  Go ahead. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  It's not hal f of a cost 
 
         19    benefit analysis, it's a whole econo mic impact 
 
         20    analysis, which is really a differen t methodology 
 
         21    than a cost benefit analysis. 
 
         22    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  Under what circumst ances would 
 
         24    you use a cost benefit analysis rath er than an 
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          1    economic impact analysis? 
 
          2          A.  If I were trying to evalua te a trade-off 
 
          3    between option A and option B, I mig ht do a cost 
 
          4    benefit analysis. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  And so if that's tr ue, wouldn't 
 
          6    it be appropriate to conduct a cost benefit analysis 
 
          7    because you do have an option A and an option B, 
 
          8    which is FirstEnergy's headquarters stays here, or 
 
          9    FirstEnergy's headquarters leaves? 
 
         10              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   She's 
 
         11    already explained why she chose the analysis she did, 
 
         12    what the analysis she did shows.  As ked and answered 
 
         13    several times.  Go ahead. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  I was asked to perform an 
 
         15    economic impact analysis.  Typically  cost benefits 
 
         16    compare two options, not the inverse  of option A. 
 
         17    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         18          Q.  Okay.  Did you by chance s uggest to 
 
         19    FirstEnergy that a cost benefit anal ysis might be 
 
         20    appropriate in this case? 
 
         21          A.  No, I did not. 
 
         22          Q.  Now, you made very clear, Ms. Murley, 
 
         23    that you haven't run an economic imp act analysis of 
 
         24    changes in utility rates and their i mpact on the 
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          1    economy for purposes of your testimo ny here, right? 
 
          2          A.  Correct. 
 
          3          Q.  Could that analysis be don e? 
 
          4          A.  It could, but it would -- that would be 
 
          5    a more appropriate application of a cost benefit 
 
          6    analysis. 
 
          7          Q.  Why is that? 
 
          8          A.  Because you're comparing o ne allocation 
 
          9    of spending to a different allocatio n of spending. 
 
         10          Q.  How many different multipl iers were used 
 
         11    in your economic impact study of the  headquarters? 
 
         12          A.  So to clarify, for each in dustry and 
 
         13    each geography, in this case the Sta te of Ohio being 
 
         14    the selected geography, there are a set of 
 
         15    multipliers, and so there are three direct 
 
         16    multipliers, three indirect multipli ers, and three 
 
         17    induced multipliers. 
 
         18              So effectively we could sa y that for any 
 
         19    given industry in a particular locat ion, IMPLAN 
 
         20    provides nine different multipliers that are applied 
 
         21    in different ways to produce the res ults. 
 
         22          Q.  And those are the direct, indirect, and 
 
         23    induced? 
 
         24          A.  For jobs, income, and outp ut. 
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          1          Q.  Okay. 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  Off the re cord for just 
 
          3    a moment.  You want to take a break?  
 
          4              (Recess taken.) 
 
          5              (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTI FICATION.) 
 
          6    By Mr. Michael: 
 
          7          Q.  Ms. Murley, I'm going to h and you what 
 
          8    has been marked Deposition Exhibit 1 , Murley.  If you 
 
          9    could please take a look at that doc ument and let me 
 
         10    know when you've had a chance to do so. 
 
         11              (Pause.) 
 
         12          A.  I have not seen this docum ent before, 
 
         13    but I have looked at it now. 
 
         14          Q.  You've never seen the Noti ce to Take 
 
         15    Deposition and Request for Productio n of Documents 
 
         16    before? 
 
         17          A.  I have not seen this parti cular document 
 
         18    before. 
 
         19          Q.  So who told you to appear today? 
 
         20          A.  The Legal Department; Trev or. 
 
         21          Q.  Okay.  Turn to Page 3 for me, if you 
 
         22    would. 
 
         23          A.  Okay. 
 
         24          Q.  I trust that because you'v e never seen 
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          1    this document before you haven't bro ught any copies 
 
          2    of any studies conducted for purpose s of rebuttal or 
 
          3    surrebuttal testimony, correct? 
 
          4              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.  
 
          5    Attorney-Examiner Price set the natu re and scope of 
 
          6    discovery for rebuttal testimony tha t included the 
 
          7    testimony and/or papers of the witne ss, which were 
 
          8    produced in accordance with the ruli ngs of the 
 
          9    Attorney-Examiner.  Subject to that objection, you 
 
         10    can answer. 
 
         11              THE WITNESS:  I have copie s of my 
 
         12    rebuttal testimony. 
 
         13              MR. MICHAEL:  So what you' re saying, 
 
         14    Trevor, is you previously produced i t consistent with 
 
         15    Attorney Price's order? 
 
         16              MR. ALEXANDER:  I'm saying  we produced 
 
         17    the information required by the Atto rney-Examiner's 
 
         18    order. 
 
         19              MR. MICHAEL:  I'm not goin g to depose 
 
         20    you. 
 
         21    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         22          Q.  Ms. Murley, are there any copies of 
 
         23    studies conducted for purposes of yo ur surrebuttal 
 
         24    testimony in existence other than wh at you brought 
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          1    with you today? 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  I think yo u might have 
 
          3    misspoke.  You said surrebuttal. 
 
          4              MR. MICHAEL:  I think that 's what she 
 
          5    described her testimony as. 
 
          6              MR. ALEXANDER:  I think yo u're talking 
 
          7    Ms. Mikkelsen's testimony. 
 
          8              MR. MICHAEL:  You're right .  I 
 
          9    apologize.  Thanks for catching that . 
 
         10    By Mr. Michael: 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  So you brought with  you today 
 
         12    your rebuttal rehearing testimony, c orrect? 
 
         13          A.  Yes. 
 
         14          Q.  And you brought your work papers with 
 
         15    you? 
 
         16          A.  Yes. 
 
         17          Q.  And you brought Mr. Buckle y's testimony 
 
         18    with you, correct? 
 
         19          A.  Correct. 
 
         20          Q.  Okay.  Are there any other  studies that 
 
         21    you conducted for purposes of your r ebuttal 
 
         22    testimony? 
 
         23              MR. ALEXANDER:  When you s ay -- you're 
 
         24    asking whether she brought her testi mony.  Just for 
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          1    the purposes of record she brought h er testimony and 
 
          2    SM-R-1, the studies she conducted.  So when you say 
 
          3    "other than", do you mean other than  SM-R-1? 
 
          4              MR. MICHAEL:  Correct. 
 
          5              MR. ALEXANDER:  With that clarification. 
 
          6              THE WITNESS:  I brought my  rebuttal 
 
          7    testimony with SM-R-1 with me, along  with my work 
 
          8    papers and the testimony of Mr. Buck ley. 
 
          9    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         10          Q.  Did you create any other s tudies for 
 
         11    purposes of your rebuttal testimony?  
 
         12          A.  No, not for the purposes o f my rebuttal 
 
         13    testimony. 
 
         14          Q.  Okay.  Are there any backu p documents to 
 
         15    your rebuttal testimony, including r aw data for 
 
         16    studies, other than what you brought  with you today? 
 
         17          A.  Not other than what I brou ght with me 
 
         18    today. 
 
         19          Q.  Okay.  Are there any docum ents that you 
 
         20    relied on or cited in your rebuttal testimony other 
 
         21    than what you brought with you today ? 
 
         22          A.  Not other than what I brou ght with me 
 
         23    today. 
 
         24          Q.  Okay.  And are there any w ork papers for 
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          1    your rebuttal testimony other than w hat you brought 
 
          2    with you today? 
 
          3          A.  Not other than what I brou ght with me 
 
          4    today. 
 
          5              MR. MICHAEL:  Thank you fo r your 
 
          6    questions. 
 
          7              MR. ALEXANDER:  Danielle, did you have 
 
          8    any questions? 
 
          9              MS. WALTER:  Yes, thank yo u. 
 
         10                        - - - 
 
         11                   CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
         12    By Ms. Walter: 
 
         13          Q.  I just have a few, and I h ave been 
 
         14    marking off so I'm going to try not to repeat 
 
         15    anything and get you out of her, Ms.  Murley. 
 
         16              My name is Danielle Walter , and I 
 
         17    represent OMAEG.  I want to start of f, are you 
 
         18    familiar with the settlements or sti pulations that 
 
         19    were filed in this proceeding? 
 
         20          A.  Can you be more specific? 
 
         21          Q.  There were several stipula tions that 
 
         22    were filed by the Companies and sign ed by some 
 
         23    signatory parties.  There was an ini tial stipulation, 
 
         24    a supplemental stipulation, second s upplemental 
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          1    stipulation, third supplemental stip ulation.  Are you 
 
          2    aware of those documents or their ex istence? 
 
          3              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Beyond the 
 
          4    scope of the hearing.  Go ahead. 
 
          5              THE WITNESS:  I am aware o f the 
 
          6    existence of some of those documents , but I'm not 
 
          7    directly familiar with them. 
 
          8    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          9          Q.  Okay.  Are you familiar wi th the 
 
         10    Commission's order issued on March 3 1st in this 
 
         11    proceeding? 
 
         12              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Again, it's 
 
         13    beyond the scope of the hearing.  Go  ahead. 
 
         14              THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
         15    By Ms. Walter: 
 
         16          Q.  Okay.  And is the purpose of your 
 
         17    testimony to add information regardi ng Staff 
 
         18    condition with respect to Staff prop osals? 
 
         19          A.  Could you be more specific ?  Are you 
 
         20    referring to Rider DMR? 
 
         21          Q.  Yes.  Staff proposal is Ri der DMR.  I 
 
         22    apologize. 
 
         23          A.  Yes.  The purpose of my te stimony is to 
 
         24    provide information that I believe w as omitted from 
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          1    Witness Buckley's testimony about Ri der DMR. 
 
          2          Q.  Okay.  So on Page 2, lines  3 to 4 of 
 
          3    your testimony.  Are you there?  Jus t let me know if 
 
          4    you're there. 
 
          5          A.  Yes. 
 
          6          Q.  Okay.  When you state that  Staff Witness 
 
          7    Buckley failed to address the econom ic and revenue 
 
          8    impacts of the headquarters, you are  referring to one 
 
          9    of the conditions that Witness Buckl ey set forth in 
 
         10    his testimony related to Staff's pro posed Rider DMR; 
 
         11    is that correct? 
 
         12          A.  I am referring to the conn ection that he 
 
         13    made between Rider DMR and the stipu lation that the 
 
         14    headquarters remain in Akron for the  term of the ESP. 
 
         15          Q.  And that was at the -- I'm  sorry. 
 
         16    Strike that. 
 
         17              So on whose behalf do you believe that 
 
         18    such a commitment would have to be m ade, FirstEnergy 
 
         19    Corp. or the Company? 
 
         20          A.  Are you -- 
 
         21              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection to the extent 
 
         22    it calls for a legal conclusion.  Go  ahead, if you 
 
         23    can. 
 
         24              THE WITNESS:  Are you refe rring to the 
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          1    commitment to keep the headquarters in Akron? 
 
          2    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          3          Q.  Yes, I am. 
 
          4          A.  I don't know who would be responsible 
 
          5    for making that commitment. 
 
          6          Q.  On Page 2, lines 7 and 8. 
 
          7          A.  Yes. 
 
          8          Q.  You state those Shared Ser vice employees 
 
          9    are employed by FirstEnergy Service Company, which is 
 
         10    a wholly owned subsidiary of FirstEn ergy Corp., 
 
         11    FirstEnergy Corp. has no employees.  Where did you 
 
         12    obtain that information? 
 
         13          A.  The Legal Department at Fi rstEnergy 
 
         14    Service Company provided information  for me to 
 
         15    understand that distinction. 
 
         16          Q.  And the next sentence begi nning on 
 
         17    line 9, in the event FirstEnergy Cor p. moves its 
 
         18    headquarters -- moves it's headquart ers, the Shared 
 
         19    Services employees would be relocate d, so that next 
 
         20    sentence, lines 9 and 10. 
 
         21          A.  Are you asking -- 
 
         22          Q.  Who informed -- who inform ed you of this 
 
         23    information as well? 
 
         24          A.  Well, the Shared Service e mployees 



 
 
                                                        108 
 
 
          1    effectively are the headquarters emp loyees, and so if 
 
          2    the headquarters moved, by definitio n they would also 
 
          3    move. 
 
          4          Q.  So that was based on the p revious 
 
          5    sentence that you said was provided to you by the 
 
          6    Legal Department? 
 
          7          A.  Yes. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  And you are assumin g then that 
 
          9    the headquarters are actually moved,  not just 
 
         10    purchased, in your analysis? 
 
         11              MR. ALEXANDER:  Could I ha ve that 
 
         12    reread, please? 
 
         13              (Question read back.) 
 
         14              MR. ALEXANDER:  Object to form as to 
 
         15    what "purchased" means. 
 
         16    By Ms. Petrucci: 
 
         17          Q.  Well, I would say that -- I guess I'll 
 
         18    clarify. 
 
         19              You're assuming then that the -- in your 
 
         20    analysis, you're making the assumpti on, or your 
 
         21    analysis is based on the assumption that the 
 
         22    headquarters are actually moved from  one location to 
 
         23    another rather than just, you know, there's a 
 
         24    purchase of the Company or the corpo ration? 
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          1          A.  My analysis is actually wh at is the 
 
          2    current point in time impact of the headquarters 
 
          3    remaining in Akron.  I did not addre ss the question 
 
          4    of ownership. 
 
          5          Q.  Okay.  Okay.  And then you r testimony -- 
 
          6    just to clarify a few things.  Your testimony 
 
          7    addresses two types of impact, the e conomic impacts 
 
          8    and the revenue impacts; is that cor rect? 
 
          9          A.  Yes, the tax revenue impac ts. 
 
         10          Q.  And the economic impact re presents 
 
         11    retaining existing jobs, payroll, an d output that are 
 
         12    generated by the headquarters, corre ct? 
 
         13          A.  Yes. 
 
         14          Q.  And is the assumption that  the 
 
         15    retention, is that the same job or e mployee numbers? 
 
         16          A.  Yes, my analysis is based on a certain 
 
         17    level of employment and payroll. 
 
         18          Q.  So it's not just the same employment, 
 
         19    but it's also, like you said, at the  same payroll 
 
         20    level as well? 
 
         21          A.  Yes.  My results are based  on both of 
 
         22    those assumptions. 
 
         23          Q.  Okay.  And the tax revenue  impact 
 
         24    represents the amount of state and l ocal tax revenues 
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          1    that are generated by the headquarte rs and employees, 
 
          2    correct? 
 
          3          A.  In this case we're only lo oking at the 
 
          4    tax revenues that are generated by e mployees of the 
 
          5    headquarters, and also the indirect and induced 
 
          6    employees from the economic impact. 
 
          7          Q.  So speaking of that, on Pa ge 6 of your 
 
          8    testimony, at the very top on -- in Figure 2, does 
 
          9    the row, the other supported jobs --  is that what you 
 
         10    refer to as the indirect and induced  employees? 
 
         11          A.  Yes.  That is the tax reve nues 
 
         12    associated with those employees. 
 
         13          Q.  And in making those calcul ations did you 
 
         14    use a multiplier? 
 
         15          A.  No, although I used inform ation from the 
 
         16    results of the economic impact analy sis on the amount 
 
         17    of indirect and induced jobs and per sonal income. 
 
         18          Q.  So how did you -- how did you perform 
 
         19    that calculation, then? 
 
         20              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection as to that 
 
         21    calculation is referring to? 
 
         22    By Ms. Walter: 
 
         23          Q.  The calculations that are included -- 
 
         24    that are included in the work or oth er supported 
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          1    jobs, how did you come to those numb ers? 
 
          2              MR. ALEXANDER:  Well, just  the important 
 
          3    clarification is she testified she u sed the numbers 
 
          4    she got from the economic impact ana lysis to then 
 
          5    determine the tax impact.  So is thi s question 
 
          6    relating to the economic impact anal ysis, or accepts 
 
          7    those numbers and then addressing th e tax analysis? 
 
          8    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          9          Q.  I'm trying to understand.  So 
 
         10    multipliers were used in the economi c impact 
 
         11    analysis, and then you used -- and I  just want to 
 
         12    make sure you used then those number s with the FE 
 
         13    Shared Service employee numbers to c ome up with the 
 
         14    other supported jobs information; is  that correct? 
 
         15          A.  So referring to the econom ic impact 
 
         16    results shown in Figure 1 of my test imony on Page 4, 
 
         17    I used economic multipliers to estim ate those numbers 
 
         18    other than employment and personal i ncome for the 
 
         19    headquarters, because those are actu al numbers. 
 
         20          Q.  Right.  So in Figure 2, th e FE Shared 
 
         21    Service employees, in that row those  are all actual 
 
         22    numbers, correct? 
 
         23          A.  No, those are estimates of  the amount of 
 
         24    taxes paid by FE Shared Services emp loyees based on 
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          1    the number of employees and their pa yroll. 
 
          2          Q.  And you do not adjust thos e inputs based 
 
          3    on actual numbers; is that correct? 
 
          4          A.  I don't have information o n the actual 
 
          5    amount of state and local sales tax paid by each of 
 
          6    the employees, I am estimating that.  
 
          7          Q.  And then the figures conta ined in the 
 
          8    other supported jobs, those are also  estimates? 
 
          9          A.  Yes. 
 
         10          Q.  And those estimates are ba sed on what? 
 
         11          A.  Those numbers are based on  the number of 
 
         12    indirect and induced employees from Figure 1 and the 
 
         13    amount of personal income associated  with those 
 
         14    employees, and also local tax rates.  
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  I under stand now.  I 
 
         16    apologize. 
 
         17              In executing this revenue impact, this 
 
         18    past revenue impact analysis, did yo u include any 
 
         19    potential lost state or local tax re venues in your 
 
         20    calculations? 
 
         21          A.  No, because I was looking at a 
 
         22    point-in-time analysis based on the amount of 
 
         23    employment and payroll in 2015. 
 
         24          Q.  On Page 5, line 20, that $ 20 million, is 
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          1    that an annual number, an annual est imate? 
 
          2          A.  Yes. 
 
          3          Q.  Okay.  So I just want to m ake sure, 
 
          4    going back now to -- you talked prev iously about in 
 
          5    Attachment A there were a number of assumptions or 
 
          6    information that was provided to you  through the 
 
          7    IMPLAN model, correct? 
 
          8          A.  Attachment A does not cont ain any 
 
          9    information from the IMPLAN model.  The information 
 
         10    in Attachment A was provided to me b y FirstEnergy. 
 
         11          Q.  Right.  And then you used that -- did 
 
         12    you use that information in the IMPL AN modeling, or 
 
         13    does the IMPLAN modeling include add itional 
 
         14    assumptions? 
 
         15              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   When you say 
 
         16    "that information", what specificall y are you 
 
         17    referring to, all of the attachment,  or just what the 
 
         18    witness previously testified to? 
 
         19              MS. WALTER:  Just the bull et points. 
 
         20    Just the bulleted list.  I apologize . 
 
         21              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  But  she earlier 
 
         22    testified she didn't use the entire bulleted list, 
 
         23    she used the table at the top of the  page in her 
 
         24    IMPLAN analysis.  So that -- with th at clarification, 
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          1    could you restate the question? 
 
          2              MS. WALTER:  Yes.  I apolo gize. 
 
          3    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          4          Q.  So let me back up.  The IM PLAN model has 
 
          5    a number of assumptions built into i t, correct, based 
 
          6    on geography and industry? 
 
          7          A.  Correct. 
 
          8          Q.  Okay.  And then in additio n to those 
 
          9    assumptions, do you also consider as sumptions -- some 
 
         10    of the assumptions that may be provi ded to you by the 
 
         11    Companies, or by FirstEnergy Corp.? 
 
         12          A.  So the IMPLAN model requir es inputs, and 
 
         13    in this case I used information in t he table in 
 
         14    Attachment A on the number of employ ees and the 
 
         15    amount of gross payroll, which aren' t assumptions, 
 
         16    those are actual numbers, as inputs to the IMPLAN 
 
         17    model. 
 
         18          Q.  And you used those in addi tion to the 
 
         19    assumptions that are already part of  the IMPLAN 
 
         20    model? 
 
         21          A.  Correct. 
 
         22          Q.  Okay.  And the bulleted li st then is 
 
         23    just additional information that was  provided? 
 
         24          A.  That's correct. 
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          1          Q.  And you may or may not use  some of those 
 
          2    in the -- as inputs as well, or do y ou not use any of 
 
          3    them as inputs? 
 
          4          A.  I did not use any of the i nformation 
 
          5    listed in the bulleted text on Attac hment A as inputs 
 
          6    to the IMPLAN model. 
 
          7          Q.  Okay.  On Page 6, line 4 o f your 
 
          8    testimony, you say, "The HQ provides  high paying jobs 
 
          9    with benefits to thousands of worker s, supports the 
 
         10    local and state economies with milli ons of dollars in 
 
         11    vendor purchases each year, and bene fits local 
 
         12    governments and school systems throu gh tax payments." 
 
         13              Can you define high paying  jobs as 
 
         14    you've used it in your testimony? 
 
         15          A.  So the average wage of emp loyees at the 
 
         16    headquarters.  So if I took the tota l payroll and 
 
         17    divide it by the number of employees , I would get an 
 
         18    average wage, is significantly above  the average wage 
 
         19    for all industries for Ohio. 
 
         20              MS. WALTER:  Can you repea t that answer, 
 
         21    please? 
 
         22              (Answer read back.) 
 
         23    By Ms. Walter: 
 
         24          Q.  Ms. Murley, do you believe  that Staff's 
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          1    proposal, the Rider DMR, provides a new commitment 
 
          2    for the FE Corp. or the Companies wi th regards to 
 
          3    their headquarters? 
 
          4              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection.   Beyond the 
 
          5    copy of her testimony.  Go ahead. 
 
          6              THE WITNESS:  I can't comm ent on whether 
 
          7    it's a new commitment.  I understand  that the time 
 
          8    commitment for the headquarters rema ining in Akron is 
 
          9    longer than in previous -- in the pr evious rider 
 
         10    proposed. 
 
         11              MS. PETRUCCI:  Can I have that answer 
 
         12    read? 
 
         13              (Answer read back.) 
 
         14    By Ms. Walter: 
 
         15          Q.  And when you say "previous  rider 
 
         16    proposed", what are you referring to ? 
 
         17          A.  Rider RRS. 
 
         18          Q.  Are you aware -- are you a ware of any 
 
         19    previous commitments made by FirstEn ergy Corp. or the 
 
         20    Companies with regard to the headqua rters? 
 
         21              MR. ALEXANDER:  Objection,  with regard 
 
         22    to -- is the question asking about i n this proceeding 
 
         23    with regard to Rider RRS, or prior t o this 
 
         24    proceeding? 
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          1    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          2          Q.  I would say within the pas t five years. 
 
          3          A.  I'm not familiar with all of the 
 
          4    commitments regarding the headquarte rs that have been 
 
          5    made in the last five years. 
 
          6          Q.  Are you aware of any previ ous 
 
          7    commitments to any state agencies wi th regard to the 
 
          8    headquarters within the past five ye ars? 
 
          9          A.  No, I am not. 
 
         10          Q.  Are you aware of any previ ous commitment 
 
         11    made by FirstEnergy Corp. or the Com panies to any 
 
         12    federal agencies with regard to head quarters in the 
 
         13    past five years? 
 
         14          A.  No, I am not. 
 
         15          Q.  Are you aware of any previ ous 
 
         16    commitments made by FirstEnergy Corp . or the 
 
         17    Companies to any state or federal co urt with regard 
 
         18    to the headquarters within the past five years? 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  And again,  just to 
 
         20    clarify, you're referring to other t han this 
 
         21    proceeding as we defended earlier? 
 
         22              MS. WALTER:  I would say w ithin the past 
 
         23    five years, whether it's within this  proceeding or 
 
         24    otherwise. 
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          1              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  I t hink that's a 
 
          2    different definition than we asked, we had done 
 
          3    earlier.  So I guess with regard to this line of 
 
          4    questioning, would that change any o f your answers? 
 
          5              THE WITNESS:  I understand  that Rider 
 
          6    DMR includes a commitment regarding the headquarters. 
 
          7    By Ms. Walter: 
 
          8          Q.  Right.  Are you aware of a ny -- outside 
 
          9    of Rider DMR, any other commitments -- 
 
         10          A.  I understand that rider --  I'm sorry? 
 
         11          Q.  -- within the past five ye ars?  I 
 
         12    apologize. 
 
         13          A.  I understand that Rider RR S did include 
 
         14    a provision about the headquarters. 
 
         15          Q.  Okay.  I'm just checking m y notes. 
 
         16              MS. WALTER:  All right.  T hat's all I 
 
         17    have.  No further questions.  Thank you, Ms. Murley. 
 
         18              THE WITNESS:  Thank you. 
 
         19              MR. ALEXANDER:  I do have one -- does 
 
         20    anybody else have questions? 
 
         21              (No response.) 
 
         22              MR. ALEXANDER:  Hearing no ne, I do have 
 
         23    one clarifying question. 
 
         24                        - - - 
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          1                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION 
 
          2    By Mr. Alexander: 
 
          3          Q.  Ms. Murley, in response to  Mrs. Walter's 
 
          4    question you testified regarding the  time commitment 
 
          5    for the headquarters.  Do you recall  that? 
 
          6          A.  Yes. 
 
          7          Q.  And you had compared the t ime commitment 
 
          8    for the headquarters provision with regard to the 
 
          9    time commitment for Rider RRS.  Do y ou recall that? 
 
         10          A.  Yes. 
 
         11          Q.  Okay.  What did you unders tand the time 
 
         12    commitment for the RRS headquarters provision to be? 
 
         13          A.  I understood that the time  commitment in 
 
         14    Rider RRS for the headquarters to st ay in Akron was 
 
         15    the same as the term of the rider; w hereas in Rider 
 
         16    DMR it is not the same. 
 
         17              MR. ALEXANDER:  Okay.  I d on't have 
 
         18    anything further.  We will read. 
 
         19              (Thereupon, the deposition  concluded 
 
         20                 at 4:09 p.m.  Signature  not waived.) 
 
         21                         - - - 
 
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
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          1    State of Ohio           : 
                                       :  SS: 
          2    County of               : 
 
          3 
 
          4              I, Sarah Murley do hereby certify that I 
               have read the foregoing transcript o f my deposition 
          5    given on Tuesday, July 26th, 2016; t hat together with 
               the correction page attached hereto noting changes in 
          6    form or substance, if any, it is tru e and correct. 
 
          7 
 
          8                            ____________ _____________ 
                                         Sarah Murl ey 
          9 
 
         10 
                         I do hereby certify that t he foregoing 
         11    transcript of the deposition of Sara h Murley was 
               submitted to the witness for reading  and signing; 
         12    that after she had stated to the und ersigned Notary 
               Public that she had read and examine d her deposition, 
         13    she signed the same in my presence o n the _____ day 
               of _____________, 2016. 
         14 
 
         15 
 
         16                             ___________ ______________ 
                                          Notary Pu blic 
         17 
 
         18 
 
         19    My Commission expires ______________ _____, ________. 
 
         20                         - - - 
 
         21 
 
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
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          1                       CERTIFICATE 
 
          2    State of Ohio            : 
                                        :    SS: 
          3    County of Fairfield      : 
 
          4              I, Valerie J. Grubaugh, Re gistered Merit 
               Reporter and Notary Public in and fo r the State of 
          5    Ohio, duly commissioned and qualifie d, certify that 
               the within named Sarah Murley was by  me duly sworn to 
          6    testify to the whole truth in the ca use aforesaid; 
               that the testimony was taken down by  me in stenotype 
          7    in the presence of said witness, aft erwards 
               transcribed upon a computer; that th e foregoing is a 
          8    true and correct transcript of the t estimony given by 
               said witness taken at the time and p lace in the 
          9    foregoing caption specified and comp leted without 
               adjournment. 
         10 
                         I certify that I am not a relative, 
         11    employee, or attorney of any of the parties hereto, 
               or of any attorney or counsel employ ed by the 
         12    parties, or financially interested i n the action. 
 
         13              IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have  hereunto set 
               my hand and affixed my seal of offic e at Columbus, 
         14    Ohio, on this July 27th day of July,  2016. 
 
         15 
 
         16 
 
         17 
                                       ____________ _______________ 
         18                            Valerie J. G rubaugh, 
                                       Registered M erit Reporter 
         19                            and Notary P ublic in and for 
                                       the State of  Ohio. 
         20 
 
         21 
               My Commission expires April 16, 2016  
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
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